
 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023, 7.00 pm -  (watch the live meeting 
here and watch the recording here) 
 
Members: Councillors Ajda Ovat (Chair), Lester Buxton and Nick da Costa 

 
 
Quorum: 3 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending 
the meeting using any communication method.  Members of the public 
participating in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, 
making oral protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, 
recorded or reported on.  By entering the ‘meeting room’, you are consenting 
to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
To receive any apologies for absence.  
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of Urgent Business. 
(Late items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New 
items will be dealt with under item 7 below). 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDljODk4ZGUtNGI4NC00NzVjLTkzMzUtNzBjZTZhZjJkYjQ3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22082c2e5d-5e1e-45e1-aa8b-522a7eea8a16%22%7d
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PL_DSjoFpWl8tSPZp3XSVAEhv-gWr-6Vzd


 

 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

5. SUMMARY OF PROCEDURE   
 
The Sub-Committee will first hear from the Licensing Officer.  After that, the 
applicant will present their application and the Sub-Committee and objectors 
will have the opportunity to ask questions. Then, the objectors will present 
their case and the Sub-Committee and objectors will have the opportunity to 
ask questions.   
 
All parties will then have the opportunity to sum up, and then the meeting will 
conclude to allow the Sub-Committee to deliberate and reach a decision. This 
decision will then be provided in writing within five working days of this 
meeting. 
 

6. APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE AT RAKKAS 
365-369 GREEN LANES, LONDON N8 (HARRINGAY)  (PAGES 1 - 192) 
 
To consider an application for a review of a premises licence.  
 

7. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   
 
To consider any items of urgent business as identified at item 3. 
 
 

 
Nazyer Choudhury, Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Tel – 020 8489 3321 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: nazyer.choudhury@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ 
 
Tuesday, 31 January 2023 
 



 

Page 1 of 8  

 
Report for:  Licensing Sub Committee 07th February 2023 
 
Item number:  6 
 
Title: Application for a Review Of a Premises Licence -  Rakkas 365-369 

Green Lanes, London N8 
  
Report  
authorised by :  Regulatory Services Manager 
 
Lead Officer: Daliah Barrett – Licensing Team Leader -Regulatory Services. 

0208489 8232. Daliah.barrett@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Ward(s) affected: Harringay 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Not applicable     
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1    This report relates to an application for the Review of Rakkas Premises License brough 

by the ASB Enforcement Noise RA the responsible authority designated under Section 
13(4)(e) of the Act as being responsible for “minimising or preventing the risk of pollution 
of the environment or of harm to human health”.  

         
1.2    Summary of review received: 
 
           i) The operation of the premises has failed to uphold and promote the prevention of  
              crime and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance licensing  
              objectives. In this regard the licensing objectives are being undermined by the  
              operation of the premises. 
 
          The application raises concerns that:  

 The provision of entertainment and use of the shisha lounge area at the rear of 
the premises is causing a nuisance to members of the public: 

 Non compliance with licensing condtions 

 The Shisha smoking are is not managed to comply with the provisions of the 
Health Act 2006 (Smoke free premises); 

 Council officer have been prevented/delayed from accessing the premises to 
check compliance 

 
 
1.3   The full review application and supporting documentary evidence can be found at   
         Appendix A. This includes emails to Mr Toprak from the Licensing Service warning  
        of the need to comply with the licecnce conditions. Warning from the ASB Team and  
        witness statement from officers who have interacted with the business in the  
        process of dealing with complaints. 
 
1.4   The current Premises Licence – APPENDIX B The premises is a restaurant which is        

authorised to provide regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and the        supply 
of alcohol. Its main activity is the provision for smoking Shisha. 

 
      Supply of Alcohol 

      Late night refreshment 

Page 1 Agenda Item 6



 

Page 2 of 8  

      The times the Licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 

      Supply of Alcohol 

      Sunday to Thursday   1100 to 2230  

      Friday to Saturday   1100 to 2330  

      Late Night Refreshment  

      Friday and Saturday   2300 to 2330  

      The opening hours of the premises: 

      Sunday to Thursday   0600 to 2300  

      Friday and Saturday   0800 to 0000  

      Any external area can only be used during the following times: 

      All external areas must be closed and cleared of customers by 2100 hours. 

      Where the Licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off   
      supplies: 
      Supply of alcohol for consumption ON the premises only. 

 
1.5  The LSC will note from the documents and footage submitted that entertainment is also 

being provided at the premises. This is being provided during its operating hours under     
deregulation. Section 177A of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that any condition on a       
premises that relates to live or recorded music is not applicable if that music takes place       
between 08:00am and 23:00and the premises holds apremises licence and is open for 
the sale of alcohol. This section also provides that on review the Licensing Authority can 
dis-apply this provision and condition any regulated entertainment if it is minded to do so 
to ensure the licensing objectives are upheld and promoted. 

 
   
1.6   RELEVANT ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN RELATION TO THE LEGAL  
 

PROVISIONS REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT 
 

The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014 amended the 2003 Act so 
as to categorise Live and Recorded Music as not being “regulated entertainment” when 
provided at licensed premises between 8am and 11pm and where audiences number 
less than 500 people. Any conditions imposed on a premises licence in do not apply 
when music is provided within these limits. Section 177A (4) states that “On a review of a 
premises licence … a licensing authority may (without prejudice to any other steps 
available to it under this Act) add a condition relating to music as if— (a)the music were 
regulated entertainment, and (b)the licence or certificate licensed the... music” In order 
for the Licensing Authority to be able to control the noise from the premises caused by 
live and recorded music at all times, the Licensing Authority need to endorse the 
premises licence with a condition, as suggested in the application, that all entertainment 
held at the premises is to be considered as regulated entertainment. The sub-committee 
should note that the premises has been alleged to be causing a nuisance between 8am 
and 11pm when licence conditions are not applicable as well as after 11pm when they 
are applicable. This may mean that the current conditions are still not sufficient to control 
the alleged concerns even if applicable throughout the entirety of premises trading 
hours. 

 
1.7   HEALTH ACT 2006 SMOKE FREE PREMISES  
 

Page 2



 

Page 3 of 8  

Smoke-free legislation in the Health Act 2006 came into force in England on 1 July 2007. 
It made virtually all indoor public places and work places smoke-free. It is a criminal 
offence to smoke in a smoke-free place (section 7 of the Health Act 2006). It is also the 
legal duty of any person who controls or is concerned with the management of smoke-
free premises to stop any person smoking on the premises (section 8 of the Health Act 
2006). It is an also an offence not to display no smoking signs in a smoke-free workplace 
or public place (section 6 of the Health Act 2006). The law applies to smoking any 
substance, or being in possession of lit tobacco or any other lit substance in a form in 
which it could be smoked, such as: manufactured cigarettes, hand-rolled cigarettes 
pipes, cigars, herbs, water/shisha pipes. Smoke-free premises The legislation covers all 
premises, which are wholly or substantially enclosed, and used as a place of work by 
more than one person, and/or open for use or access by the public. 'Enclosed' means an 
area with permanent walls and doors without any gaps. Windows and doors are not 
classed as gaps. 'Substantially enclosed' would be a structure (with a roof/ceiling) with 
an opening in the walls where the opening would make up less than half of the area of 
the total wall space. Again doors and windows are not classed as gaps. Therefore - 
smoking is banned in all enclosed or substantially enclosed public and work places. This 
includes the smoking of shisha through a water pipe. Water pipes can only be smoked 
outside in the open air, or where a smoking shelter is at least 50% open to comply the 
smoke-free regulations 2006. 
The Environmental Health Officers have advised that the shisha area is compliant with 
the Health Act 2006 only with the retractable roof open 50%. Allbeit the shisha lounge 
area itself is unauthorised under Planning.  

 
 

1.4  Representations must relate to particular premises for which a Premises Licence is           
already held and must be relevant to the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.            
The Licensing Committee, in determining a review, may exercise the range of powers           
given to them to promote the Licensing Objectives. The Authority will seek to establish 
the cause or causes of the concern and remedial action will be targeted at such causes. 
Any action will be proportionate to the  problems involved. Where reviews arise and the 
Licensing Authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined 
through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that the revocation of 
the licence- even in the first  instance – will be seriously considered (Amended 
Guidance, paragraph 11.27).  

        Revocation also remains an option  if other licensing objectives are being undermined.  
 
          
2      Recommendations 
         
2.1  Determination of this application (Options) Section 52(3) of the Act provides the options 

that the Licensing Authority must, having regard to the application and any relevant 
representations, take such of the steps listed below, if any, as it considers appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

        (a) to modify the conditions of the licence; Modifying the conditions of a licence includes 
the addition of new conditions as well as the removal or re-wording of any existing 
conditions. 

       
  (b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; To remove any activity 

presently authorised by the licence, either to have permanent effect or for such period  
the Licensing Sub-Committee may specify for such period not exceeding 3 months.  

         
           (c) to remove the designated premises supervisor;  
        
           (d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;  
         

Page 3



 

Page 4 of 8  

          (e) to revoke the licence;  
 
        The Sub-Committee, acting for and on behalf of the Licensing Authority, is bound by       

Section 4 of the Act to carry out its duties with a view to promoting the four licensing        
bjectives and, in carrying out its functions, have regard to its own Statement of        
Licensing Policy and any guidance issued to Licensing Authorities by the Home        
Secretary under Section 182 of the Act. 

 
2.2    The Licensing Sub – Committee are reminded of their duty under  Section 17 of the         

Crime and Disorder Act 1989 to consider the crime and disorder implications of their         
decisions and the Licensing Authority’s responsibility to cooperate in the reduction of         
crime and disorder in the Borough. 

                       
3.     Background 
 
3.1    The original Rakkas premises at 369 Green Lanes  was initially licensed in March 2012.  
         It had the following operating times: 
 
3.2    The premises was transferred in November 2012 to a Mr Osman who then applied to  
         vary the hours in June 2013: 

         The times the Licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 

         Supply of Alcohol  

        Monday to Sunday   1100 to 0130 

        Live Music 

        Monday to Sunday   1800 to 0130 

        Recoded Music 

        Monday to Sunday   1100 to 0130 

        Late Night Refreshment 

        Monday to Sunday   2300 to 0200 

       The opening hours of the premises: 

        Monday to Sunday   0800 to 0200  

       The external rear area can only be used during the following times: 
       Sundays from 10am to 9pm 
       Monday to Thursday from 8am to 9pm 
       Friday and Saturday from 8am to 10.30 pm 
 
3.3  In January 2014 the licence was transferred to Mr Ali Ozbeck. Mr Ozbeck then applied to  
       vary conditions on the licence and to extend the shisha area and hours.  

       The variation was granted as follows and the shisha area had a 30 minute increase on a  
       Friday and Saturday night:  
 
       Supply of Alcohol  

       Monday to Sunday   1100 to 0130 

       Live Music 

       Monday to Sunday   1800 to 0130 

       Recoded Music 

       Monday to Sunday   1100 to 0130 

Page 4



 

Page 5 of 8  

       Late Night Refreshment 

       Monday to Sunday   2300 to 0200 

      The opening hours of the premises: 

      Monday to Sunday   0800 to 0200  

      The external rear area can only be used during the following times: 

      Sundays    1000 to 2100 

      Monday to Thursday  0800 to 2100 

      Friday to Saturday  0800 to 2300 
 
3.4 The LSC noted at the time that due to the fact that the licence holder had been found to  
       have breached the licence on at least three occasions, the Committee felt that it would be  
       inappropriate to grant the variation in full as requested. 
 

3.5 In September 2016 a review was initiated against Mr Ozbek by the Noise Team RA. Mr  
      Ozbek received a number of warnings to take steps to prevent noise nuisance which was  
      impacting  on the residential properties above the premises. The late hours  
      of the enlarged rear shisha area had led to music being provided in this area to customers  
      and a marked increase in nuisance comlaints.  
      The LSC at the time imposed a one month suspension and conditions added to the  
      licence. Mr Ozbek appealed but that appeal was later withdrawn and dealt with by way of  
      a Consent Order granted by the Court in May 2017. The conditions determined by the  
      LSC were imposed. These were for a noise limiter and engagement with residents. 
 

3.6 In Februaray 2021 the licence held by Mr Ali Ozbek was revoked following ongoing noise  
      Nuisance, at this time the public nuisance was affecting a wider area and residents to the  
      rear of the business were also being affected. 
      This was coupled with ongoing breaches of the licence conditions as well as   
      breaching Covid regulations in place at the time.   
 
3.7 A new application was received in June 2021 with Mr Garip Toprak as the applicant. Mr  
      Ali Ozbek however, remains the named person responsible for business rates payer from  
      2014 to date at 365-369 Green Lanes and 399 Green Lanes. 
 
.3.8 The current Rakkas at 365-369 Green Lanes is said to be a restaurant.Its isis  
       authorised to provide regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and the supply of  
       alcohol. It also provides a large area for the smoking Shisa across the three units at the  
       rear of the  premises. The  Premises licence was issued in July  
       2021 following a hearing with the LSC. A copy of the minutes and the resolution from that  
       meeting is attached as Appendix E.  The premises has ongoing enforcement actions  
       related to breaches of Planning Permission, the use of the premises as a shisa lounge is  
       not authorised under Planning. Whist, the applicant will state that these are separate  
       regimes, the Planning permission granted in particular for the rear area required an  
       enclosed conservatory to be installed.  
       Mr Toprak has instead built a shisha lounge which does not have Planning permission     
       and would also require by law to be 50% open to the elements. As a result the activities    
         that take place in this area was likely to lead to noise nuisance from both people and   
         music noise, due to this factor the LSC determined that the area should be closed to      
         the public at 21:00 each day in order to ensure the prevention of noise nuisance would    
         be upheld and promoted. This existing condition has not been observed by Mr Toprak. 

 

Page 5



 

Page 6 of 8  

3.2  The Planning permission for this ‘new’ 3 unit Rakkas placed a requirement for      
rebuilding the rear single storey back extensions, to be fully enclosed, with roof         
windows specifically required to be non opening to prevent noise nuisance. The         
Licensing Authority sought clarity from the applicant and the agent as to whether the 

         intention was to use the rear garden area shown on the plan for shisha smoking         
activity. The agent responded to say that they are separate matters and he wished to 

         focus on the alcohol licence application being sought at the time in July 2021. The          
email response from the agent at thetime stated that the rear external lounge area of          
the restaurant would be used for fine dining, but if smoking was to take place the          
premises would be compliant with tops and sides being open. There are emails from          
other residents stating that they ave not experienced public nuisance from the          
premises. 

         The matters highlighted in the review and residents complaints point to the people         
noise and music noise emanating from this area to bethe main cause of the nuisance          
being experienced.  There are various pieces of footage /video filmed by a resident  

         which gives a sense of the sounds emanating from the rear area, regardless of the roof          
being open and compliant or not. 

 
3.3   From a Licensing Authority perspective it is a relevant matter as the offering of shisha         

smoking whilst not a licensable activity can give rise to public nuisance and can have a         
very serious impact on the  objective of preventing public nuisance from licensed         
premises. Such activity is required by law to take place in premises that are 50% open.         
Therefore, there is more of an opportunity for nuisance from people noise socialising         
whilst smoking shisha at the venue to impact on nearby residents. The previous       
business that used to operate at 369 Green Lanes (also known as Rakkas)  received a         
number of complaints from residents affected by noise arising from the use of the rear         
garden as a shisha lounge by that particular venue.  The current larger operational        
Rakkas has also had complaints lodged since the licence was granted in July 2021, see         
appendix F. It is therefore a matter that the LSC requires clarity from the applicant on         
and therefore engages their discretion on the prevention of public nuisance on the         
licensing objective.    

          
3.4  Mr Toprak has recently  applied to vary the existing licence to gain later hours of       

operation citing a list of other venues not like for like operating with slightly later hours         
than Rakkas. A number of residents made representation to this application and the         
matter was refused by the LSC on 19th January 2023. Appendix G – Resolution. 

 
3.5    Within the report pack are completed survey forms initiated by the business to interact 

with residents. These forms have then been used as the basis to ask residents to submit 
emails of support for the business. All parties that have submitted a valid representation 
during the consultation period have been notified of the hearing.  

        
4.     Licensing Policy 
 
4.1   In carrying out their licensing functions a licensing authority must have regard to the 

licensing authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the Secretary of State’s Guidance 
issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (“s.182 Guidance”).  In relation to 
“Reviews”, the s.182 Guidance recognises that: 

        11.1- The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club 
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems 
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises 
licence or club premises certificate. 

 The review process – Section 11.1 – 11.11, Page 89-90 

 Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review – Section11.16 
– 11.23, Page 92 

 

Page 6



 

Page 7 of 8  

4.2  Similarly, the s.182 Guidance points out, in the context of reviews arising in      
connection with crime, that the duty of a licensing authority is to make decisions          in 
the interests of the wider community and not simply those of the individual          licence 
holder: 

        11.26- Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that he 
premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to  determine what 
steps should be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the 
crime prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or 
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of 
the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with 
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing          
authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The 
licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community 
and not those of the individual licence holder. 

 
4.3   Hearsay evidence is admissible although the High Court has observed that:  
        “Some evidence such as gossip, speculation and unsubstantiated innuendo would be 

rightly disregarded. Other evidence, even if hearsay, might by its source, nature and 
inherent probability carry a greater degree of credibility.  All would depend on the 
particular facts and circumstances.” 

 
4.4  Given these are administrative/civil proceedings, where a factual issue falls to be         

decided the standard of proof is the balance of probabilities. 
         The promotion of the licensing objectives is ultimately a forward looking exercise.         

Deterrence is also a proper consideration. In East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif, 
(Admin), a licensing case involving the employment of illegal workers, the High Court 
(Jay J) made important observations of more general application to licence review 
decisions: 

        “The question was not whether the respondent had been found guilty of criminal         
offences before a relevant tribunal, but whether revocation of his licece was        
appropriate and proportionate in the light of the salient licensing objectives, namely the 
prevention of crime and disorder. This requires a much broader approach to the issue 
than the mere identification of criminal convictions. It is in part retrospective, in as much 
as antecedent facts will usually impact on the statutory question, but importantly the 
prevention of crime and disorder requires a prospective consideration of what is 
warranted in the public interest, having regard to the twin considerations of prevention 
and deterrence.” 

 
4.5   Similarly, in R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates’ Court [2008] EWHC         

3530 (Admin), the High Court considered a case where a licence review followed sales 
of alcohol to underage test-purchasers. Slade J (at §32), referred to deterrence as a 
proper consideration in the context of licence reviews.Responsible operators are 
expected to be compliant with the law. 

 
4.6  The committee will also wish to be aware of the guidance issued under section 182 of the 

Licensing Act 2003: 
             
 4.7  Powers of a Licensing Authority  
 
         Powers of a Licensing Authority on the Determination of a Review  s11.23 Licensing 

authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and licensable activities may 
be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up to three months. 
Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three months could impact on 
the business holding the licence financially and would only be expected to be pursued as 
an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives. So, for instance, a licence 

Page 7



 

Page 8 of 8  

could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the 
problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. However, it will always be 
important that any detrimental financial impact that may result from a licensing 
authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. But   where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing 
authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle 
the problems at the premises. 

 
4.8   The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of the State’s guidance and        

the  Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. Where the        
decision departs from either the Guidance or the Policy clear and cogent reasons must       
be given. Members should be aware that if such a departure is made the risk of appeal /  

         challenge is increased. 
 
5.   Other considerations 
 
5.1  Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states: 
       ‘’Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of each        

authority to which this section applies to exercise its various functions with due regard to 
the likely effect of the exercise of those function on, and the need to do all that is        
reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area’’. 

 
5.2  Human Rights 

While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular relevance 
to the application are: 
o Article 8 – Right to respect for private and family life. 
o Article 1 of the First Protocol – Protection of Property 
o Article 6(1) – Right to a fair hearing. 
o Article 10 – Freedom of Expression 

 
 
 

6     Use of Appendices 
 
        Appendix 1- Review application form and supporting  Documentation. 
        Appendix 2 – Copy of Premises licence. 
        Appendix 3- Copy of representations in support of review  
        Appendix 4 – Emails in support of Rakkas and Survey responses. 
        Appendix 5  - Copy of resolution from July 2021 hearing-(new application) 
        Appendix 6 – Compliants log since new licence granted 
        Appendix 7- Variation hearing resolution. 
         

         

 

 

Page 8



 

 

Appendix 1 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 30



Signed:                                                Dated: 13th December 2023   1 

STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules 2005 r271(1); 

Criminal Justice Act 1967 s.9; M.C. Act 1980 s5B) 
 

Statement of Sarah Greer 
 
Age of Witness:  Over 18 

 
This Statement, consisting of three pages signed by me, is true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be 
liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it anything, which I know to be false or do 
not believe to be true. 
Signature:  
 
Date: 13th January 2023 
 
1. I am Sarah Greer, I am employed by the London Borough of Haringey as an Interim 

Enforcement Manager covering the east of the borough, this area includes 
Tottenham Hale Ward. Parts of my duties are to investigate offences under the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Health Act 2006.  
 

2. Under the Health Act 2006, Premises are deemed as being smoke free if they are 
open to the public; they are used as a place of work by more than one person and 
where members of the public might attend for the purpose of seeking or receiving 
goods or service from the person or persons working there. 

 
3. It is the duty of any person who occupies or is concerned in the management of a 

smoke free premise, to ensure that smoke free signs are displayed in accordance 
with the Smoke free (Signs) Regulation 2012. Smoke free premises must have a 
minimum A5 sign on display in their business where members of the public have 
access too. The sign should display a no smoking symbol and warning that it is 
illegal to smoke on the premises.   

 
4. The smoke free law covers the smoking of tobacco or anything that contains tobacco 

or smoking any other substance. This means that anything that is covered by smoke 
free law. The smoke free law includes, manufactured and hand-rolled cigarettes, 
pipes, cigars, herbal cigarettes, and water pipes (including shisha hookah and 
hubble-bubble pipes).  

 
5. On Monday the 14th of November 2022, at approximately 22:04, I attended Rakkas, 

369 Green Lanes, London, N4 1DY, with my colleagues Stephen Davies and Maria 
Barbeito, as part of a routine licensing inspection. As I approached the entrance of 
the premises, I observed two male SIA security standing in front of the door, I 
identified myself to them by showing my authorisation and informed them I would be 
carrying out a licensing inspection.  I then proceeded to go into the premises.  
 

6. As I walked into the business, I could smell shisha and see smoke from a room that 
appeared to be at the rear of the premises.  

 

Page 31



Signed:                                                Dated: 13th December 2023   2 

7. I approached the bar area and identified myself to the person behind the bar by 
showing my authorisation and asked to speak to the manager. 
 

8. Whilst I was waiting for the manager to arrive, myself and Steve Davies walked to 
the rear of the premises. As we walked into the room, I observed that it was filled 
with smoke and had a very strong smell of shisha, I also observed seventy people 
sitting at tables in the room and each table had at least one person smoking shisha.  
 

9. I looked up to the ceiling and observed that the roof area was closed, I looked round 
the room and observed that only a small area of window on the top floor of the 
premises was open and was aware that this was not 50% open as the Health Act 
2006, requires.  
 

10. I was approached by a man who identified himself as Mr Has Yildiz, Mr Yildiz 
declined to give me his date of birth and home address. Mr Yildiz informed me that 
he was the manager of the business and gave me details of the owner as Mr 
Garip Toprak of  Carnegie Close, Enfield, London EN3 6XX. 

 
11. I informed Mr Has Yildiz, that I believed an offence had been committed under the 

Health Act 2016, as the premises was not 50% open. Mr Has Yildiz took us 
upstairs to the area where a couple of windows were open and whilst we went 
upstairs the roof started to open automatically.  

 
12. Once upstairs he showed me windows that were open and informed me that he 

felt the business was compliant, he also said that he would like me to tell him what 
should be open for compliance.  I informed him that what I observed was not 
compliant and that the side windows being open did not fit in with the requirements 
of the Health Act 2016. I suggested he get an architect to come into the premises 
and show him exactly what is 50% open and is complaint with the Health Act 
2016.   

 
13. I informed Mr Has Yildiz that I would be reporting him to the licensing department. I 

exhibit photographs taken on the day as SG1. 
 

14. I am willing to attend court.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



Signed:                                                Dated: 13th December 2023   3 

 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 
From: EH - Out Of Hours <EH-OutOf.Hours@haringey.gov.uk>  
Sent: 06 March 2022 19:59 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Cc: Barrett Jennifer <Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas 
 
Hi Licensing,   
 
Mr ? called up a few times regarding noise from Rakkas.  I left voicemail and called a few times but 
he never got back to me on Friday or Saturday.   
 
I did manage to speak to him at 2232 hours on Saturday.    He stated that he left due to the noise.  I 
explained that the noise team had left voicemails.  I advised him that we needed to witness the 
noise from his property.  He agreed to answer his phone next time.   
 
I went into Rakkas at 2315 hours.  The patrons were leaving and no food or drink served.  there was 
still music on but not excessive.  I asked to see a copy of the licence but they stated that they had 
not received it through the post yet as they had no post box, so it was getting sent through to 
solicitor.  Advised that they needed to stick to terms of their licence and to keep to times and 
conditions of their licence.  Words of advice given on this occasion.   
 
Kind regards 
 
April 
 
April Smart 
ASB Enforcement Officer 
 

 
 
Haringey London 
River Park House, Level 1 North, 225 High Road, Wood Green, London, N22 8HQ 
www.haringey.gov.uk 
twitter@haringeycouncil 
facebook.com/haringeycouncil 
 
Please consider the environment before printing this email. 

 
 
 
 
From: Service Account <admin@responseooh.onmicrosoft.com>  
Sent: 05 March 2022 22:22 
To: Noise Complaints <Noise.Complaints@haringey.gov.uk>; EH - Out Of Hours <EH-
OutOf.Hours@haringey.gov.uk>; Patel Sabera <Sabera.Patel@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: ENQ-98330 - LBHAR - Noise Report CRM:0001553 
 
This is the out of hours team. The following job has been sent via Email to your noise team. 
 
 
 

Page 35

mailto:EH-OutOf.Hours@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/
mailto:admin@responseooh.onmicrosoft.com
mailto:Noise.Complaints@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:EH-OutOf.Hours@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:EH-OutOf.Hours@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Sabera.Patel@haringey.gov.uk


Caller First Name:  
Caller Last Name:  
Telephone Number:  
Email Address:  
Caller Address: REDACTED   Green Lanes, N4 1DY 
 
 
Address Location: 369 Green Lanes, Finsbury Park, London N4 1DY 
Exact Location: Rakkas restaurant 
What is the nuisance type: Music 
Latest Call back time: ASAP 
Notes: Ongoing issue with music coming from the restuarant below.  
Vehicle Registration:  
Vehicle Make:  
Vehicle Model:  
Vehicle Colour:  
 
Handoff Created On: 05/03/2022 22:21:30 
Reference Number: ENQ-98330 
 
Thank You 
Out of hours   
 
 
 
 
From: Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk>  
Sent: 04 March 2022 23:36 
To: EH - Out Of Hours <EH-OutOf.Hours@haringey.gov.uk>; Jennifer Barrett 
<Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk>; ASB.Enforcement@haringey.gov.uk; Brian Ellick 
<Brian.Ellick@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkaa 365 369 Green Lanes 
 
Hi 
 
I have just had a resident on the phone to complain about the above business operating and causing 
noise and ASB issues. He was trying to reach the Noise Team . 
 
The garden area is supposed to be osed by 9pm but it is still occupied and fireworks are being let off 
from this area.  
 
Can you please visit to send a message to the trader that this is not acceptable.  
 
Thanks 
Daliah  
 

Page 36



 
 
From: Barrett Daliah <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk> On Behalf Of Licensing 
Sent: 07 August 2022 13:08 
To:  
Cc: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk>; ASB.Enforcement@haringey.gov.uk 
Subject: FW: Rakkas 
 
Dear Mr Toprak, 
 
It seems that you are still operating in breach of the  Premises License condition with regard the 
time by which the rear external area is permitted to be used. 
For the avoidance of doubt it is reiterated to you again here: The external area must be closed to 
the public at 21:00. There is no ambiguity in this condition and therefore no room for doubt as to 
what it means or requires you to do to comply with the condition. 
 
Be aware that the current Planning Enforcement matter has been highlighted to this Service and we 
have attached the enforcement notice issued you under Planning provisions. 
 
Be clear that failure to comply with the conditions of the licence is a breach of the law., simply put it 
is an offence to not comply. Your Premises Licence may be at risk of review or prosecution for any 
non compliance. 
 
Regards 
Daliah Barrett 
Licensing Team Leader  
 
 

 
From: Barrett Daliah 
Sent: Thursday, March 10, 2022 2:32:52 PM 
To:  
Cc: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: Rakkas  
  
Dear Mr Toprak, 
  
It is extremely disappointing to note that you have now opened to the public and are already 
attracting complaint relating to noise nuisance and possible breach of the conditions of the 
terms of the licence. 
  
The use of the smoking area as you are fully aware was restricted to closure and cleared of 
the public by 21:00 each day. This needs to be properly managed by yourself to ensure the 
prevention of public nuisance objectives are met. From complaints being received it seems 
that you are failing in this regard. 
  
Be aware that as a licensed premises if you fail to comply with the conditions of the licence 
along with the promotion of the licensing objectives you will run the risk of the licence being 
reviewed. 
  
As the licence holder and DPS it is your responsibility to have regard to the law and 
manage the venue accordingly. 

Page 37

mailto:Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:ASB.Enforcement@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk


Regards 

Daliah Barrett 
Licensing Team Leader  

 
  
Haringey London 
River Park House, Level 1 North, 225 High Road, Wood Green, London, N22 8HQ 
  
www.haringey.gov.uk 
twitter@haringeycouncil 
facebook.com/haringeycouncil 
  
Please consider the environment before printing this email. 
  
  
 

Page 38

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/


Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING ACT 2003 
Sec 24                   

 

PREMISES LICENCE 
 
Receipt: SELMS00008635  Premises Licence Number: LN/000024997 
This Premises Licence has been issued by: 

The Licensing Authority, London Borough of Haringey, 
1st Floor River Park House, 225 High Road, 

Wood Green, London N22 8HQ 
 
 

COPY 
Signature:   ....................................................................  Date: 27th July 2021 

                                                                                                           
Part 1 – PREMISES DETAILS  

Postal Address of Premises or, if none, Ordnance Survey map reference or 
description: 

RAKKAS 
365-369 GREEN LANES 

LONDON  
N4 1DY 

Telephone:  

Where the Licence is time limited, the dates:  

Not applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the Licence: 

Supply of Alcohol 

Late night refreshment 

The times the Licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 

Supply of Alcohol 

Sunday to Thursday   1100 to 2230  

Friday to Saturday   1100 to 2330  

Late Night Refreshment  

Friday and Saturday   2300 to 2330  

The opening hours of the premises: 

Sunday to Thursday   0600 to 2300  

Friday and Saturday   0800 to 0000  

Any external area can only be used during the following times: 

All external areas must be closed and cleared of customers by 2100 hours. 

Where the Licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 

Supply of alcohol for consumption ON the premises only. 
 

Page 51



LICENSING ACT 2003 
Sec 24                   

 

 
Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of 
holder of Premises Licence: 

Garip Toprak 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable): 

Not applicable  

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where 
the Premises Licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 

Garip Toprak 

 

Personal Licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the Premises Licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol: 

Personal Licence:     

Issued by:     

     
 

Page 52



Annex 1 –Mandatory Conditions 

 

 

Supply of alcohol.  
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence;  
 
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, 
or  

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his 
personal licence is suspended.  
 
2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person 
who holds a personal licence.  
 
3. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.  
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, 
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises—  
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, 
individuals to—  
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the 
premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or  
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);  
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to 
the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a 
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;  
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the 
purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries 
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;  
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity 
of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-
social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;  
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that 
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  
4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 
customers where it is reasonably available.  
5. (1) The premises licence holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect 
of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the 
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.  
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years 
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being 
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—  
(a) a holographic mark, or  
(b) an ultraviolet feature.  
6. The responsible person must ensure that—  
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises 
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or 
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—  
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii)gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and  
(iii)still wine in a glass: 125 ml;  

Page 53



Annex 1 –Mandatory Conditions 

 

 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available 
to customers on the premises; and  
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be 
sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.  
 
7. Prohibition on Sale of Alcohol below Cost of Duty plus VAT  
(1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  
 
(2) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph (1) —  

(a) ―duty‖ is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(6);  

(b) ―permitted price‖ is the price found by applying the formula –  
 
P = D + (D x V)  
Where –  
(i) P is the permitted price,  
(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the 
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and  
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax 
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol  
(c) ―relevant person‖ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence —  
(i) the holder of the premises licence,  
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence,  
or  
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;  
(d) ―relevant person‖ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club 
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which 
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and  
(e) ―valued added tax‖ means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax 
Act 1994  
(3) Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) would (apart from this 
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.  
 
(4) (a) Sub-paragraph (b) below applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 
paragraph (2) on a day (―the first day‖) would be different from the permitted price on the next 
day (―the second day‖) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.  
 
(b) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol 
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.  
 
Exhibition of films.  
1. Admission of children to the exhibition of any film is to be restricted in accordance with the 
recommendations made by the specified film classification body.  
 
2. Where –  
(a) the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or  

(b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies 
to the film in question,  

Page 54



Annex 1 –Mandatory Conditions 

 

 

 
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that 
licensing authority.  
3. In this section –  
 
―children‖ means persons aged under 18; and ―film classification body‖ means the person or 
persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) 
(authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).  
 
Door supervision.  
1. Any person(s) required to be on the premises to carry out a security activity must be authorised 
to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001 or be 
entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of Section 4 of that Act.  

. 
 
 

Page 55



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

 

 

THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 

 

1. All outside areas must be closed and cleared of customers by 2100 hours. Adequate notices 

shall be displayed to inform patrons of this requirement. The premises licence holder shall take 

appropriate measures to ensure that patrons using any outside areas do so in a quiet and 

orderly fashion. 

 
2. Smoking Area: If patrons are to be allowed to use an outside area for smoking then: 

 
(i) The area must be adequately monitored to ensure that the risk of crime and disorder in 

this area is adequately controlled. 

 
(ii) Patrons must not be allowed to take drinks outside when they go to smoke. 

 

(iii) The area must be provided with suitable ashtrays/bins. 

 

(iv) The area must be regularly swept to remove cigarette ends. 

 

(v) Adequate arrangements must be made to prevent overcrowding or disorder in the area. 

 
3. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the following 

criteria: 

 
(a) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance doors from both inside and outside. 

 
(b) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders of all 

people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification. 

 
(c) Cameras must be sited to cover all areas to which the public have access including any 

outside smoking areas. 

 
(d) Provide a linked record of the date, time of any image. 

 
(e) Provide good quality images - colour during opening times. 

 
(f) Have a monitor to review images and recorded quality. 

 
(g) Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention. 

 
(h) Member of staff trained in operating CCTV at venue during times open to the public. 

 
(i) Digital images must be kept for 31 days. The equipment must have a suitable export 

method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that Police can make an evidential copy of the data they 

require. Copies must be available within a reasonable time to Police on request. 

 
4. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, it will be in a hardback durable format 

handwritten at the time of the incident or as near to as is reasonable and made available on 

request to the Police, which will record the following: 

 

Page 56



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

 

 

(a) all crimes reported to the venue; 

(b) all ejections of patrons; 

(c) any complaints received; 

(d) any incidents of disorder; 

(e) seizures of drugs or offensive weapons; 

(f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment; 

(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol; 

(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
5.  

(a) A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly 

available at all times the premises are open. This telephone number shall be made 

available to residents and businesses in the vicinity.   

 
(b) The premises licence holder shall ensure that all sales staff receive appropriate 

training in relation to managing conflict and health and safety of the public and staff. 

Training documents shall be signed and dated and will be held in a suitable hard-

copy log, to be made available to a Police Officer or Council Officer upon request. 

Said records shall be retained for at least 12 months. 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY 

   6     (a) The licence holder will ensure that all staff receive appropriate training about   
                      emergency and general safety precautions and procedures. 

 
(b) Two SIA registered door staff shall be employed daily between 8pm and closing 

time. 
 

THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 

   7 

(a) No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises, nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 

premises which gives rise to nuisance. 

 
(b) All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 23:00 hours except for the 

immediate access and egress of persons. 

 

(c) Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.  

 

(d) No fumes, steam or odours shall be emitted from the licensed premises so as to 

cause a nuisance to any persons living or carrying on business in the area where the 

premises are situated. 

 

(e) The direction of lighting in the rear area must be directed away from any domestic 

premises so as not cause any light intrusion. 

 

Page 57



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

 

 

(f) Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving 

the building shall not cause a nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the 

vicinity. Any filters, ducting and extract fan shall be cleaned and serviced regularly. 

 

(g) In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the 

licensee shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence. 

 

(h) Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits (including the rear 

seating area) requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to 

leave the premises and the area quietly. 

THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN 

   8 

The premises will operate the ‘Challenge 25’ proof of age scheme where: 
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation; 

(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving 

licence, or holograph equipped ‘PASS’ scheme cards, will be accepted; and 

(c) No one under the age of 18 years will be admitted into the external area of the 

premises. 

Page 58



Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

 

 

 
RESOLVED 27th July 2021 
The Licensing Sub-Committee carefully considered the application for a new premises licence for 
365-369 Green Lanes, London, N4. In considering the application, the Committee took account of 
the London Borough of Haringey’s Statement of Licensing Policy, the Licensing Act 2003, the 
Licensing Act 2003 section 182 Guidance, the report pack, the Licensing Authority representation, 
the applicant’s written and oral representations and the objectors’ written and oral representations. 
 
Having considered the application and heard from all the parties, the Committee decided to grant 
the application for a new premises licence with the following operating hours and additional 
conditions: 
 
All conditions imposed are reflected above in Annex 2. 
 
Reasons 
 
The Committee considered that the concerns raised by the objectors in their written and oral 
representations were reasonable concerns. The Committee was satisfied that a premises of this 
size which would attract a lot of patrons and would need a comprehensive set of conditions to 
manage the likely impact of noise and other nuisance on local residents. The Committee accepted 
that the licence holder was offering a different business to the previous owner but retained some 
concerns about the manner in which it was proposed that the premises would operate. 
 
The Committee felt that the applicants proposed layout plan needed additional clarification, in 
particular aspects of the plan dealing with the means of escape, which may need to be corrected by 
means of an application for a variation once the applicant has clarified his intentions as regards the 
layout.  
 
In addition, although the Committee was not responsible for planning matters, it noted that there 
were some planning issues relating to the retractable roofing proposed and extraction system that 
required attention and wished as an informative matter only, to gently encourage the applicant to 
get planning matters resolved to the satisfaction of the planning authority without delay.  
 
As regards the outside area, the Committee considered that the outside space needed to be 
managed in a way that would promote the licensing objectives with respect to nuisance, which had 
been a concern of the residents and decided that closing the outside area by 9pm would reduce 
the risk of the premises undermining the licensing objective with respect to public nuisance.  
 

Page 59



Annex 4 – Plans 

 

 
 

Page 60



 
From: Amir Darvish <Amir.Darvish@haringey.gov.uk>  
Sent: 25 September 2022 18:41 
To: Festus Akinboyewa <Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk>; Charlene Thorneycroft 
<Charlene.Thorneycroft@haringey.gov.uk>; Jennifer Barrett <Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 
Cc: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk>; Jennifer Barrett 
<Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Rakkas 
 
Festus  
 
We visited RAKKAS on Fri 23rd, approximately at 11:10 pm. The door supervisor tried to prevent my 
entry although I managed to get through the sliding door which he was trying to keep closed.  
 
I went to the back area the restaurant; the retractable roof was fully closed and the restaurant was 
full to its capacity.  The majority of the tables had Shishas on the side and I witnessed the customer 
smoking the shisha. 
 
 
 
 
 
From: Festus Akinboyewa <Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk>  
Sent: 23 September 2022 17:38 
To: Amir Darvish <Amir.Darvish@haringey.gov.uk>; Charlene Thorneycroft 
<Charlene.Thorneycroft@haringey.gov.uk>; Jennifer Barrett <Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas 
 
Dear friends, 
 

Can you please visit Rakkas over the weekend to inspect the Shisha area at the back of the 
premises?  
 

The Shisha area should not be operating after 21.00 pm. We are due to report back to 
Eubert by the 2nd of October and I'm not on nights until 6th October. 
 
Kind regards, 
Festus  
 
Get Outlook for Android 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
From: Amir Darvish <Amir.Darvish@haringey.gov.uk>  
Sent: 25 September 2022 18:41 
To: Festus Akinboyewa <Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk>; Charlene Thorneycroft 
<Charlene.Thorneycroft@haringey.gov.uk>; Jennifer Barrett <Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 

Page 61

mailto:Amir.Darvish@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Charlene.Thorneycroft@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Amir.Darvish@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Charlene.Thorneycroft@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk
https://aka.ms/AAb9ysg
mailto:Amir.Darvish@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Charlene.Thorneycroft@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk


Cc: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk>; Jennifer Barrett 
<Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Rakkas 
 
Festus  
 
We visited RAKKAS on Fri 23rd, approximately at 11:10 pm. The door supervisor tried to prevent my 
entry although I managed to get through the sliding door which he was trying to keep closed.  
 
I went to the back area the restaurant; the retractable roof was fully closed and the restaurant was 
full to its capacity.  The majority of the tables had Shishas on the side and I witnessed the customer 
smoking the shisha. 
 
 
 
 
 
From: Festus Akinboyewa <Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk>  
Sent: 23 September 2022 17:38 
To: Amir Darvish <Amir.Darvish@haringey.gov.uk>; Charlene Thorneycroft 
<Charlene.Thorneycroft@haringey.gov.uk>; Jennifer Barrett <Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas 
 
Dear friends, 
 

Can you please visit Rakkas over the weekend to inspect the Shisha area at the back of the 
premises?  
 

The Shisha area should not be operating after 21.00 pm. We are due to report back to 
Eubert by the 2nd of October and I'm not on nights until 6th October. 
 
Kind regards, 
Festus  
 
Get Outlook for Android 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
From: Jennifer Barrett  
Sent: 14 October 2022 18:18 
To: Garip Toprak <  
Cc: Festus Akinboyewa <Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas: Site visit yesterday 
 

Page 62

mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Amir.Darvish@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Charlene.Thorneycroft@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk
https://aka.ms/AAb9ysg
mailto:Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk


Dear Garip and Hassan 
Rakkas:Site visit yesterday (09:00 to 10:10am) 
Further to our meeting yesterday here is a summary of our discussion. 
You said: 
1. the rear shisha area is part of the licensable area (as outlined in red on the plan in your 
licence) but shisha is not a licensable activity. You believe you are complying with licence 
since no licensable activities are undertaken there after 9pm (no drinking, sale of alcohol, 
dancing). 
We talked you through the licence conditions (and that in Annexe 2 of your licence 
which specifies the area must be cleared by 9pm). We explained to you that this 
condition serves to prevent public nuisance and reiterated our advice to you. 
We suggested that you consider how you want to use the premises and consider 
applying for a variation if you wish to operate your premises differently to ensure you 
are operating lawfully. You were also advised to seek professional advice (from your 
barrister/ agent) about your plans and get advice about the same from the Licensing 
Authority as early as possible. 
Until that is done YOU MUST not use the area after 9pm 
 
2. the license was unclear about the use of 'outside' and 'external' areas 
We discussed the ‘outside’ area referred to in the licence – the rear area that you 
currently use for shisha. This should not be confused with the outside / smoking area 
described in condition 2 which refers specifically to measures for smokers- you 
should assume this means cigarette/ tobacco smoking. Consideration of shisha 
smoking is not included in the licence. 
 
3. some interactions with neighbours were unhelpful/ you were unfairly targeted(you 
described an incident with a black vehicle a resident flagged as a problem but was not 
associated with your premises) 
We noted your concerns. Provided advice about how we investigate complaints and 
our legal duties to address complaints made. We included advice about how we deal 
with suspected malicious complaints. 
 
4. you were concerned about the number of visits made by the council and described a 
recent visit where you said an officer pushed their way into the restaurant and was running 
about. You said this was a particular concern from a safety viewpoint as well as how this 
would look to your customers. 
We explained to you we have visited you in response to complaints made about 
public or other nuisance. Residents have in the past months logged complaints about 
noise from patrons leaving and entering your premises, noise from people talking in 
the rear area, smoke or odour from your kitchen extract and use of the area outside 
the hours specified in the licence. We have observed breaches of the license 
previously and advised you at the time we visited or in writing thereafter. We continue 
to receive complaints about the sue of your rear area and have evidence that you 
have recently used this in Breach of the Health Act (permitting smoking in a closed 
environment rather that a structure that is 50% open).we are currently seeking legal 
advice about formal enforcement in respect of this offence. 
We will continue to visit as often as is required until we are certain the issues we raise 
with you have been addressed. 
We have noted the specific concern you raised regarding a recent visit. We await the 
CCTV footage you said will also evidence this. I will make further enquiries and 
update once this has been done. 
 
5. you have met with the technician responsible for providing the CCTV footage we 
requested and expect that to be provided within a week. 
Noted. 

Page 63



 
You are reminded that you must adhere to all conditions in the licence. If you are not able to 
do this, you are required to formally request a change your licence. You must not use the 
rear area after 9pm. We will continue to monitor your compliance with this as further visits to 
your premises, affected residents and the local area to verify your compliance with the 
licence. You risk enforcement action (for a breach of the licence) being taken against you if 
you do not. 
 
I hope the above is clear but do not hesitate to contact us if you have additional questions. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
Jennifer Barrett 
 
Noise and Nuisance Manager 
Environment & Neighbourhoods 
 
M 07989 223 970 
 
jennifer.barrett@haringey.gov.uk 
www.haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
For the latest updates on the Coronavirus visit www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-
events/haringey-coronavirus-covid-19-updates 
If you need to report something please log it here: Report It or use our Online Service: Contact Frontline Why 

wait when you can do it online? 

 
1st Floor, River Park House 
225 High Road, 
London, 
N22 8HQ 
twitter@haringeycouncil 
facebook.com/haringeycouncil 
Please consider the environment before printing this email 
 
 
 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Jennifer Barrett  
Sent: 05 October 2022 17:48 
To: Garip Toprak <  
Cc: Festus Akinboyewa <Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Rakkas 
 

Page 64

mailto:jennifer.barrett@haringey.gov.uk
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-events/haringey-coronavirus-covid-19-updates
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-events/haringey-coronavirus-covid-19-updates
https://our.haringey.gov.uk/reports/add
https://eforms.secure.haringey.gov.uk/ufs/EMAIL_CONTACT.eb?SERVICE_ID=OT
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/contact-haringey-council
mailto:Festus.Akinboyewa@haringey.gov.uk


Thanks and noted Garip 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Jennifer Barrett 
 
Noise and Nuisance Manager 
Environment & Neighbourhoods 
 
M 07989 223 970 
 
jennifer.barrett@haringey.gov.uk 
www.haringey.gov.uk 
 
 
For the latest updates on the Coronavirus visit www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-events/haringey-
coronavirus-covid-19-updates 
If you need to report something please log it here: Report It or use our Online Service: Contact 
Frontline Why wait when you can do it online? 
 
1st Floor, River Park House 
225 High Road, 
London, 
N22 8HQ 
twitter@haringeycouncil 
facebook.com/haringeycouncil 
Please consider the environment before printing this email 
 
 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Garip Toprak < 
Sent: 05 October 2022 17:47 
To: Jennifer Barrett <Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Rakkas 
 
As spoken over the phone and confirmed 
 
Thursday 13th - 9am at Rakkas 
 
Regards 
> 
> On 5 Oct 2022, at 17:33, Jennifer Barrett <Jennifer.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk> wrote: 
> 
> Hello Garip 
> 
> I have meetings for most of the day but can meet at 12.30- 1.30pm or 3.15 - 4pm if you are able to 
come to the council offices in Wood Green? 

Page 65

mailto:jennifer.barrett@haringey.gov.uk
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-events/haringey-coronavirus-covid-19-updates
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-events/haringey-coronavirus-covid-19-updates
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk


> 
> Festus will also be in attendance and I have copied him into this too. 
> 
> Yours sincerely 
> 
> 
> Jennifer Barrett 
> 
> Noise and Nuisance Manager 
> Environment & Neighbourhoods 
> 
> M  
> 
> jennifer.barrett@haringey.gov.uk 
> www.haringey.gov.uk 
> 
> 
> For the latest updates on the Coronavirus visit 
> www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-events/haringey-coronavirus-covid-19-upda 
> tes If you need to report something please log it here: Report It or 
> use our Online Service: Contact Frontline Why wait when you can do it online? 
> 
> 1st Floor, River Park House 
> 225 High Road, 
> London, 
> N22 8HQ 
> twitter@haringeycouncil 
> facebook.com/haringeycouncil 
> Please consider the environment before printing this email 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> -----Original Message----- 
> From: Garip Toprak < 
> Sent: 05 October 2022 17:27 
> To: Jennifer Barrett <Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 
> Subject: Re: Rakkas 
> 
> Hi, 
> 
> Thursday 13th shall we say 2 o’clock? 
> 
>> 
>> On 5 Oct 2022, at 15:44, Jennifer Barrett <Jennifer.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk> wrote: 
>> 
>> Hello Garip 
>> 
>> When would you like to meet? 
>> Next Thursday or Friday would be preferable 
>> 

Page 66

mailto:jennifer.barrett@haringey.gov.uk
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-events/haringey-coronavirus-covid-19-upda
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk


>> 
>> Yours sincerely 
>> 
>> 
>> Jennifer Barrett 
>> 
>> Noise and Nuisance Manager 
>> Environment & Neighbourhoods 
>> 
>> M 07989 223 970 
>> 
>> jennifer.barrett@haringey.gov.uk 
>> www.haringey.gov.uk 
>> 
>> 
>> For the latest updates on the Coronavirus visit 
>> www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-events/haringey-coronavirus-covid-19-upd 
>> a tes If you need to report something please log it here: Report It 
>> or use our Online Service: Contact Frontline Why wait when you can do 
>> it online? 
>> 
>> 1st Floor, River Park House 
>> 225 High Road, 
>> London, 
>> N22 8HQ 
>> twitter@haringeycouncil 
>> facebook.com/haringeycouncil 
>> Please consider the environment before printing this email 
>> 
>> 
>> 
>> 
>> -----Original Message----- 
>> From: Garip Toprak < 
>> Sent: 03 October 2022 20:21 
>> To: Jennifer Barrett <Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk> 
>> Subject: Rakkas 
>> 
>> Dear Jennifer, 
>> 
>> I would like to discuss matters with you in regards to Rakkas, can you arrange a meeting or send 
me your phone number to contact you. 
>> 
>> 
>> Regards 
>> This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be subject to legal privilege and 
are intended only for the person(s) or organisation(s) to whom this email is addressed. Any 
unauthorised use, retention, distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this email in error, please notify the system administrator at Haringey Council immediately 
and delete this e-mail from your system. Although this e-mail and any attachments are believed to 
be free of any virus or other defect which might affect any computer or system into which they are 

Page 67

mailto:jennifer.barrett@haringey.gov.uk
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/news-and-events/haringey-coronavirus-covid-19-upd
mailto:Jennifer.Barrett@Haringey.gov.uk


received and opened, it is the responsibility of the recipient to ensure they are virus free and no 
responsibility is accepted for any loss or damage from receipt or use thereof. All communications 
sent to or from external third party organisations may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in 
accordance with relevant legislation. 
 

Page 68



 
 

 

Page 69



 

Page 70



 

Page 71



 

Page 72



 

Page 73



 

Page 74



 

Page 75



 

Page 76



 

 

Page 77



 

 
 

Page 78



 

 

Appendix 3 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 18:15 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Support 

 

XXXXXXXXXXXXX  

 

 

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone 

On Wednesday, January 4, 2023, 6:07 pm, Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 

wrote: 

Dear Ms Berry, 

Please provide your address to make a valid representation. 

Regards 

Licensing Team 

 From: XXXXXXXXXXXX  

Sent: 04 January 2023 18:02 

To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 

Subject: Support 

 Dear Licensing 

My name is XXXXXXX and I am writing in support of Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, London N4 

1DY in relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th December 2022. 

 I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the 

patrons, especially in relation to public nuisance.  

I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 

 Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 

 Yours faithfully, 

XXXXXXXXXX 

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone 

 
 

 

Page 81

https://overview.mail.yahoo.com/?.src=iOS
mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk
https://overview.mail.yahoo.com/?.src=iOS


From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 13:28 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Rakkas 

 

Dear Haringey Council, 

 

I am a resident at XXXX Lothair Road North. I walk past Rakkas on a daily basis. 

 

I believe, from my knowledge of the venue, that the business is addressing its licensing 

objectives well.  

 

In the interests of public safety, prevention of crime and prevention of public nuisance, Rakkas 

has two door staff standing outside the entrance on Green Lanes. Each time I pass they are polite 

and welcoming. 

 

I feel that the restaurant is a good feature of our community. 

 

XXXXXXXXX 

 

On Wed, 4 Jan 2023 at 12:36, Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear Mr XXXXXX 

Thank you for the email, 

Can you please say how you believe from your knowledge of the venue that it is promoting the 

licensing objectives, you may for instance frequent the venue or may have noticed things in 

passing that you thought represented good management practice that you can refer to here? 

Can you also supply your address to make a valid representation that can be taken into account. 

Kind regards 

Licensing Service 

Haringey Council 

 

From: XXXXXXXXXX  

Sent: 04 January 2023 12:25 

To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 

Subject: Rakkas 

Dear Licensing 

Page 82

mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk


My name is XXXXX and I am writing in support of Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, London N4 

1DY in relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th December 2022. 

I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the 

patrons, especially in relation to public nuisance.  

I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 

Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 

Yours faithfully, 

XXXXXXX 

--  

XXXXXXXXXX 

Design | Music 

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be subject to legal privilege and 

are intended only for the person(s) or organisation(s) to whom this email is addressed. Any 

unauthorised use, retention, distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you have 

received this email in error, please notify the system administrator at Haringey Council 

immediately and delete this e-mail from your system. Although this e-mail and any attachments 

are believed to be free of any virus or other defect which might affect any computer or system 

into which they are received and opened, it is the responsibility of the recipient to ensure they are 

virus free and no responsibility is accepted for any loss or damage from receipt or use thereof. 

All communications sent to or from external third party organisations may be subject to 

recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation. 

 

--  

XXXXXXXXXX 
Design | Music 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 83

https://rory-watts.com/
https://shibumi.live/
https://rory-watts.com/
https://shibumi.live/


 
From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 15:27 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas (365-369 Green Lanes N4 1DY 

 

Dear Licensing  

  

My name is XXXXXXXXX and I am writing in support of Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, 

London N4 1DY in relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th December 

2022. 

  

I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the 

patrons, especially in relation to public nuisance.  

  

I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 

  

Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 

  

  

Yours faithfully, 

 

 XXXXXXXXXX  

XXXXXX Lothair road N4 1ER 

 

Sent from Outlook for iOS 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84

https://aka.ms/o0ukef


From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 15:30 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas ( 365-369 Green Lanes N4 1DY ) 

 

Dear Licensing 

  

My name is XXXXXXXXX and I am writing in support of Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, 

London N4 1DY in relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th December 

2022. 

  

I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the 

patrons, especially in relation to public nuisance.  

  

I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 

  

Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 

  

  

Yours faithfully, 

 

XXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXX Lothair road N4 1ER 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



 

 

From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 15:35 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Rakkas ( 365-369 Green Lanes N4 1DY) 

 

Thank you for your email.  

My address is  

XXXXXXXX 

 Green Lanes 

N4 1DY 

 

On Wed, 4 Jan 2023, 13:31 Licensing, <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear Sir  

  

Thank you for the email, 

We have the same email from XXXXXXXXXXXX, the same matters below apply. 

Can you please say how you believe from your knowledge of the venue that it is promoting the 

licensing objectives, you may for instance frequent the venue or may have noticed things in 

passing that you thought represented good management practice that you can refer to here? 

  

Can you also supply your address to make a valid representation that can be taken into account. 

Please note all valid representations go into the public domain. 

  

Kind regards 

Licensing Service 

Haringey Council 

  

  

 

Page 86

mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk


From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXX>  

Sent: 04 January 2023 13:28 

To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 

Subject: Rakkas ( 365-369 Green Lanes N4 1DY) 

Dear Licensing 

My name is XXXXXXXX and I am writing in support of Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, London 

N4 1DY in relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th December 2022. 

I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the 

patrons, especially in relation to public nuisance.  

I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 

Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 

Yours faithfully, 

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be subject to legal privilege and 

are intended only for the person(s) or organisation(s) to whom this email is addressed. Any 

unauthorised use, retention, distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you have 

received this email in error, please notify the system administrator at Haringey Council 

immediately and delete this e-mail from your system. Although this e-mail and any attachments 

are believed to be free of any virus or other defect which might affect any computer or system 

into which they are received and opened, it is the responsibility of the recipient to ensure they are 

virus free and no responsibility is accepted for any loss or damage from receipt or use thereof. 

All communications sent to or from external third party organisations may be subject to 

recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87

mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk


From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  

Sent: 04 January 2023 15:52 

To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 

Subject: Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, London N4 1DY 

Dear Licensing 

My name is XXXXXXXXXX and I am writing in support of Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, London N4 1DY in 

relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th December 2022. 

I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the patrons, 

especially in relation to public nuisance.  

I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 

Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 

Kind Regards 

XXXXXXXXXXXX She/Her - Children’s Placements & Quality Officer 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

  
 

This document is strictly confidential and is intended only for use by the addressee. If you are not the 

intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or other action taken in reliance of the 

information contained in this e-mail is strictly prohibited. Any views expressed by the sender of this 

message are not necessarily those of the London Borough of Havering. If you have received this 

transmission in error, please use the reply function to tell us and then permanently delete what you 

have received. This email was scanned for viruses by the London Borough of Havering anti-virus services 

and on leaving the Authority was found to be virus free. Please note: Incoming and outgoing e-mail 

messages are routinely monitored for compliance with our policy on the use of electronic 

communications. 

 

Havering Council’s Privacy Notice can be found on our website Data Protection, 

https://www.havering.gov.uk/info/20044/council_data_and_spending/139/data_protection, which 

outlines your rights and how we collect, use, store, delete and protect your personal data. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88

https://www.google.com/maps/search/369+Green+Lanes,+London+N4+1DY?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.havering.gov.uk/info/20044/council_data_and_spending/139/data_protection


From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 22:48 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Support Rakkas 

 

 

Dear Licensing 

My name is XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX Lothair rd London N41ER I am writing in support of 

Rakkas 365-369 Green Lane London N41DY in relation to a review application of its premises 

licence dated 9th December 2022 

 

I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the 

patrons especially in relation to public nuisance. 

 

I believe the premises contributes to are community and promotes the four licencing objective. 

 

Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application  

 

Yours faithfully 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXi 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



 
From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 05 January 2023 18:44 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas 

 
Dear Licensing  
  
My name is XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX (XXX Lothair Road North, N4 1EW) and I am writing in support of Rakkas 365-369 
Green Lanes, London N4 1DY in relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th December 2022. 
  
I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the patrons, especially 
in relation to public nuisance.  
  
I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 
  
Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 
  
  
Yours faithfully, 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
 

Sent from Outlook for iOS 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90

https://aka.ms/o0ukef


From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 05 January 2023 22:56 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas 

 
Dear Licensing  
  
My name is XXXXXXXXXXXXXX (XX Lothair Road North, N4 1EW) and I am writing in support of Rakkas 365-369 
Green Lanes, London N4 1DY in relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th December 2022. 
  
I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the patrons, especially 
in relation to public nuisance.  
  
I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 
  
Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 
  
  
Yours faithfully, 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

 

Sent from Outlook for iOS 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91

https://aka.ms/o0ukef


From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 16:27 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas (365_369 green lanes n4 1dy 

 

Dear Licensing 

  

My name is XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX and I am writing in support of Rakkas 365-369 Green 

Lanes, London N4 1DY in relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th 

December 2022. 

  

I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the 

patrons, especially in relation to public nuisance.  

  

I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 

  

Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 

  

  

Yours faithfully, 

XXXXXXXXXX Green Lanes 

N4 1DY 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX>  
Sent: 04 January 2023 16:22 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas Restaurant - 365-369 Green Lanes, Harringay, London N4 1DYS 

 

Dear Haringey Licensing Team, 

  

Name: XXXXXXXXXX 

Address: XXXVenetia Road, N4 1EJ 

Time spent at current address: 3 months 

 

I am writing in support of Rakkas Restaurant, at 365-369 Green Lanes, London N4 1DY in 

relation to a review application of its premises licence dated 9th December 2022. 

  

I live just around the corner from the restaurant and frequently walk past it, but I've never been 

inside. I have noticed however that there are always security guards outside no matter the 

weather. I have never had any issues with the owner or customers, especially in relation to public 

nuisance.  

  

I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 

  

Please take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 

  

Kind regards, 

XXXXXXXXXX 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Review of the Premises Licence: Rakkas, 365-369 Green Lanes, N4 1DY 
 
 
Personal details 
 
Name   Andy and Catherine Cheatle 
Address   
    
         
 

 

3 January 2023 
 
 
 
Reason for representation  
 
We would like to support the review of the licence held by Rakkas of 365-369 Green Lanes 
which has been initiated by ASB Enforcement. The premises has not complied with all its 
Licensing or Planning obligations since it re-opened in March 2022. Further, the operation of 
the premises is in conflict with Haringey’s licensing objectives and causes detriment to local 
residents.  While recognising that the Licensing Committee’s remit does not cover Planning 
concerns, we would encourage the Licensing Committee to consider the enforcement action 
being taken by Planning in determining any future action. 
 
Particular issues with the operation of the premises at 365-369 Green Lanes are as follows 

listed by licensing objective. 

 
Prevention of public nuisance  
 

• The Rakkas premises underwent significant refurbishment during lockdown and 
reopened in March 2022 as a much larger venue. The premises expanded from a single 
shop front to a triple frontage and across four premises to the rear together with a new 
mezzanine floor. 
 

• The new extension to the rear of the premises has a large retractable glass roof and 
sides which extends over the rear of four premises. Both Planning and Licensing 
Committees were concerned with potential noise coming from this area and placed 
restrictions on its use to manage noise levels. For example, Licensing required the rear 
of the premises to be cleared of customers and closed by 2100 hours while Planning 
required roof lights and windows to be non-opening. These requirements are not being 
complied with.  
 

• Noise from the rear of the premises causes disturbance until the whole premises has 
closed (up to 0000 hours). This noise is particularly felt in warm weather when windows 
in the premises are retracted and we would like to open our own windows or use the 
back garden. Photograph of retracted windows attached. 

Page 95



 
• Lights from the rear of the premises are directed over local residents’ gardens until 

much later than the premises’ operating hours (i.e. the rear of the premises continues 
to be lit after the front of the premises has been closed). Photograph attached. 
 

• There has been an increase in people parking their cars in local roads since March to 
access Rakkas. This follows the advice provided by Rakkas on its website. This has 
increased competition for parking spaces and has caused some drivers to park in front 
of our and other local residents’ drives blocking us in.  

 
• Noise from customers returning to their cars parked in Lothair Road North, Venetia 

Road, Tancred Road and other local roads. This has continued for up to an hour after 
the premises has closed (i.e. up to 0100) , and has consisted of loud talking and shouting 
from high spirited customers following rounds of drinks, slamming of car doors, revving 
engines and playing of loud music on their departure.  
 

• Unpleasant smoke and cooking odours coming from the restaurant’s chimneys and 
blown across the gardens and windows of residents’ homes. Photograph attached. 

 
Prevention of crime and disorder  
 
• Since March there has been an increase in crime and disorder issues in the local area 

including drug dealing and use of nitrous oxide cannisters, car crime, muggings and 
burglaries. This increase in crime is not necessarily Rakkas’ customers but it does 
coincide with the reopening of Rakkas. 

 
Public safety  
 
• Non-residents’ cars accelerating down Lothair Road North to speeds which are not 

compatible with a narrow and quiet residential road thereby endangering vulnerable 
residents such as young children and elderly residents. 
 

• Overflowing and smelly commercial waste bins on the pavement in Lothair Road North 
for extended periods create a health hazard and an obstruction to pedestrians, 
particularly those using buggies and walking aids, forcing them to go on to the road 
itself to pass one another. Further, this practice of leaving commercial waste bins on 
the pavement for extended periods of time differs from all other local commercial 
businesses. 
 

• An unsafe “emergency” access door (solid, heavy metal) opens outwards onto Lothair 
Road North is also used for deliveries and entrance / exit for staff although the Planning 
application for a rear extension which was granted in February 2021 stated that this 
access door would not be in use in normal operation. However, the door is used daily 
and is a health hazard as it is not possible for those opening the door to see whether it 
is safe to do so – an accident waiting to happen. 

 
 

Page 96



Other 
 

• The premises is now operating as a restaurant and lounge bar providing shisha, cocktails 
and live entertainment with only the restaurant facilities at the front of the premises. 
Compromises are being made to meet the differing requirements of these activities – 
for example shisha operating requirements require open windows while the license for 
other activities requires closed windows to reduce noise levels. 

 
Evidence 
 
We have raised these points with the manager of Rakkas and, following lack of any effective 
response, subsequently made complaints to the council with supporting evidence. Sample 
photographs are included in the appendix and sample videos are attached to exemplify points 
made in this representation. 
 
We also note that the tenant of one of the houses in Lothair Road North close to the premises 
curtailed their tenancy arrangements over the summer as the noise from the premises 
interfered with their studies. 
 
Conclusion 
 
This evidence shows that the operation of 365-369 Green Lanes does not meet all its licensing 
obligations and has not done so since it reopened in March. This has resulted in noise and 
other public nuisance to local residents as well as an increase in crime and public safety issues. 
The premises should either be made to comply with existing licence obligations or have its 
licence removed.   
 

Yours sincerely 

 

Andy and Catherine Cheatle  

Page 97



APPENDIX 
 
Evidence – sample photographs 
 
Light pollution at rear of premises after 2100 hours  
 

 
 
Retracted windows 
 

 
 
 
Smoke 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 98



Commercial waste bins 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 4 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



 
From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 18:02 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas licence review 

 

 

To whom it may concern, 

 

I would like to urge Haringey Council to enforce stricter measures on Rakkas, up to and 

including revoking its current licence. 

 

From its licence revokation in 2021 to its repeated breaches in 2022, Rakkas has shown that it 

does not take the rules seriously and does not deserve to run a licenced business. It has befouled 

our local area with its regular and unapologetic flouting of regulations, and the council should act 

to sanction it appropriately.  

 

As a local resident I’ve seen nothing but disruption and nuisance from this business. This 

includes: 

-     Noise late at night from the outdoor garden throughout the year. While Enforcement took 

action and visited on occasion, the disruption was very regular; 

-     Noisy customers revving and/or idling engines on Lothair Road North as they park or 

leave. 

-     Shouting and, on one occasion, fighting among customers on Lothair Road North;  

-     A huge increased of parked cars up Umfreville Road, Lothair Road North, Venetia Road 

and Tancred Road, giving residents fewer parking options; 

-     Regular parking on double-yellow lines opposite the restaurant on Green Lanes, in the 

area outside the entrance to Harringay Green Lanes station and outside McDonalds; 

-     Aggressive posturing and sexist leering from bouncers, whose presence has been 

described as threatening and merely to make the restaurant appear more exclusive than it is. 

 

I find it insulting and a waste of council time that Rakkas is permitted to pursue an extention to 

its licence when this review of its current licence is in motion. I also noticed on Monday, January 

2, people with clipboards stopping passers-by to glean testimonials about Rakkas, some of whom 

are not local residents, so I have reservations about such support. I hope this is noted in the 

review. 

 

XXXXXXX 

Resident, Lothair Road North 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 103



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 18:52 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Comment on licensing review for Rakkas 

 

Dear licensing,  

 

I am writing in response to the licensing review for Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, Harringay, 

London N4 1DYS. I have recently moved back with my parents on Lothair Road North for a few 

months in between renting, and the difference in the area and road from 18 months ago until now 

is astounding, primarily due to the noise, rubbish and disruption caused by Rakkas. This is 

mostly in relation to: 

 Rubbish-Multiple service bins being left blocking the pavement for days on regular 

occasions often with rubbish and liquid spilling out of them. This makes it hard to walk 

past on the pavement and impossible if you were using a walking stick, wheelchair, 

carrying shopping or pushing a buggy. An example of this can be seen in the photo 

attached below. 

 Noise- especially throughout the summer there was constant loud noise late into the 

evening severely impacting my quality of life. I could no longer sit in my garden to relax 

without disruption. This was due to windows being left wide open and music being 

played loudly, with bright lights. This would continue into the night severely impacting 

my sleep. 

 Nuisance- there are multiple cars parked along all spaces in the road, blocking our 

driveway and making it impossible to park or use our car. The Rakkas website advises 

patrons to park on the road. 

 When concerns have been raised directly with the venue intimidation tactics have been 

used rather than engaging with the local community to reach a resolution.  

 There has been a noticeable increase in crime and disorder in the area- this is not solely 

due to Rakkas, however it does mean there are multiple large groups of people 

congregating on street corners, which can be intimidating. 

 The above have been severely impacting the quality of life of many local residents- 

including me- increasing stress and having a detrimental impact on day to day life. There 

has been no attempt made to engage with the local community that I have experienced 

and the above are all increasing in scale rather than being resolved. 

I hope these comments are useful in the licence review and are fully taken into consideration on 

how this is taken forward. 

 

Name: XXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

Address: XXXXX lothair road north, n4 1er 

 

Attachment 1- taken on 15/11/22 

Page 104



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



 

From: Cllr Zena Brabazon <Zena.Brabazon@haringey.gov.uk>  

Sent: 04 January 2023 19:27 

To: Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk>; Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 

Subject: Rakkas Review representation 

Dear Licensing 

Please find attached my representation regarding the review of the Rakkas license. 

Thanks  

Zena 

 

Cllr Zena Brabazon 

Cabinet Member, Children, Schools and Families 

Labour Member for Harringay Ward 

Haringey Council 

225 High Road, River Park House, N22 8HQ 

t. 0208 489 5788 

m. 07812677710 

zena.brabazon@haringey.gov.uk  

www.haringey.gov.uk 

twitter @haringeycouncil 

facebook.com/haringeycouncil 

Please consider the environment before printing this email 

 

Haringey Council Licensing Team  
Alexandra House, Level 4 
10 Station Road,  
Wood Green  
London, N22 7TR       04/01/2023 
 
 
Dear Licensing Team 
 
Re: Review of Rakkas Restaurant License  
 
I am writing to you in my capacity as a ward councillor for Harringay ward. The Rakkas restaurant 
is located in my ward.  

Page 106

mailto:zena.brabazon@haringey.gov.uk
file://///LBOH.local/LBOH-SHARED-DATA/EN/Enfr/BunF/AllF/Environmental%20Control/Licences%20-%20templates/Licensing%20Act%202003%20-%20Review%20Application%20Scans/Rakkas,%20365-369%20Green%20Lanes/Review%202022/Support/www.haringey.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/haringeycouncil
http://www.facebook.com/haringeycouncil


 
I have received many complaints from residents who live near the Rakkas. The complaints relate 
to noise nuisance, emanating both from the premises, and from customers returning to their cars 
and to loud music from the rear extension beyond permitted hours. They told me that this has 
been an ongoing problem for several months, which hey have reported to the local authority. 
The local authority did respond to their complaints, and my understanding is officers tried to 
work with the Rakkas to ensure they complied with the licensing conditions. Despite best efforts 
however, noise nuisance continued, with over 20 reports submitted by residents who have been 
adversely affected, as I set out in my letter to you below of 9 December.   To clarify further, during 
the very warm summer I was told Enforcement Officers visited in July, August and September 
because of repeated disregard for the conditions, and for residents whose right to enjoy their 
gardens was severely affected.  
 
It is regrettable that, despite enforcement efforts and LBH engagement with the business, the 
Rakkas continued to flout licensing conditions, and that this has now culminated in the Council, 
as a Responsible Authority calling a Review of the Premises Licence. 
 
Committee members will know that the Rakkas has applied for a variation to its license, for longer 
opening hours in the rear of the premises. As of writing this submission in support of the review, 
the variation application has not been heard.  I have therefore attached my representation for 
that application below, since it is, in my view, entirely relevant to the issues being addressed in 
the review. In summary these are, noise nuisance, anti-social behaviour and continuing breach 
of existing licensing conditions. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this representation. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Zena Brabazon 
Cllr, Harringay ward 
 

ORIGINAL REPRESENTATION SUBMITTED IN RESPONSE TO VARIATION OF 

LICENSE REQUEST 

 

Haringey Council Licensing Team  

River Park House,  

Level 1 North,  

225 High Road,  

Wood Green  

London, N22 8HQ        9 December 2022 
 
 
Dear Licensing Team  
 

Page 107



Variation to the Premises Licence: 365-369 Green Lanes, N4 1DY 
 
I am writing as ward councillor for Harringay ward to object to the application made by the Rakkas 
restaurant for a variation to their current license. 
 
My objection is based in particular on the prevention of public nuisance, and in addition, on the 
way in which the premises has operated since it re-opened in March 2022 as a much larger venue 
- a triple frontage restaurant, with a mezzanine to the rear.  
 
As ward councillor I have been contacted on several occasions by local residents who live near 
the premises. They have told me about the noise nuisance, emanating both from the premises, 
and from customers returning to their cars. Of particular concern was the use of the rear 
extension with noise and light pollution outside the permitted hours, (i.e., after 9pm). They have 
told me there was music coming from the rear extension, again in breach of licensing conditions. 
These breaches have been reported to the local authority.  
 
Noise nuisance has particularly affected residents living in Lothair Road North, to the rear of the 
premises.  The roof and side windows of the rear extension have been opened (contrary to 
requirements) and this has been especially problematic when live music was being played.  On 
behalf of residents I have reported the noise nuisance, and disregard for the licensing conditions, 
to LBH enforcement officers. They have followed up,  witnessed loud music from the premises 
themselves, and have issued a formal warning notice having confirmed the external area was in 
use after 11pm.   
 
It is regrettable that, despite enforcement efforts and LBH engagement with the Rakkas,  
residents continued to report noise nuisance, with over 20 reports submitted by residents who 
have been adversely affected.  During the very warm summer, Enforcement Officer visited in July, 
August and September because of repeated disregard for the conditions, and for residents whose 
right to enjoy their gardens was severely affected.  
 
Noise nuisance has been compounded by the noise which occurs when Rakkas customers return 
to their cars, parked in Lothair Road North, Venetia Road, Tancred Road and others, late at night.  
Raised voices, shouting, slammed car doors, car stereos and revved engines all cause huge 
disruption when ambient noise levels are very low in otherwise quiet residential streets.  As the 
Council’s Licensing Policy 2021-26 states, ‘A licence holder’s responsibility does not end at the 
door of their premises’ (section 9.6). 
 
Turning to light pollution, the unauthorised use of the rear extension after permitted hours has 
also led to problems with this for residents in Lothair Road North.  As a very large glazed structure 
extending over the rear of four premises, the extension emits a huge amount of light and 
residents are aware of bright light shining long after the 9pm deadline, with customers clearly 
visible moving around in this area.   
 

Page 108



Residents have also filed complaints via the Council’s website about unpleasant cooking smells 
emanating from the premises, and have reported on overflowing commercial waste bins on the 
pavement in Lothair Road North remaining  there for up to 4 weeks, and also an unsafe 
emergency access door opening outwards onto Lothair Road North. 
 
Given these experiences, you will appreciate that residents are very concerned about this new 
application to vary the license, to allow the back addition/outside area to remain open until 23.30 
(Sun-Wed) and 00.00 (Thur-Sat).  
 
The council’s Licensing Policy 2021-26 (p8) states that its fundamental purpose ‘is to ensure that 
licensed premises have a positive impact on their locality’ but, based on residents’ real experience 
of this venue, it is debateable as to whether this aspiration for this licensed premises is possible.  
 
Noise nuisance was an issue raised at the hearing for the current license. The  concerns raised by 
the objectors at that hearing were considered by the committee to be reasonable. The committee 
‘was satisfied that a premises of this size would attract a lot of patrons and would need a 
comprehensive set of conditions to manage the likely impact of noise and other nuisance on local 
residents. The Committee accepted that the licence holder was offering a different business to the 
previous owner but retained some concerns about the manner in which it was proposed that the 
premises would operate.’  
 
Regarding the issue of managing the outside space, the Licensing Committee determined that it 
needed to be managed in a manner which promoted ‘the licensing objectives with respect to 
nuisance, which had been a concern of the residents and decided that closing the outside area by 9pm 
would reduce the risk of the premises undermining the licensing objective with respect to public 
nuisance’. 
 
It is hard to escape the conclusion that the Licensing Committee took the issues of noise nuisance 
and management of the outside space very seriously, and set conditions designed to minimise 
problems. Regrettably, these problems remain where the license conditions have been breached. 
Given this, on what basis can the current variation be approved?  

 
 

Zena Brabazon 

Cllr, Harringay Ward 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 109



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 19:50 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Complaint against extended opening hours - Rakkas 

 

 
Hi there, 
 
Please find attached the license representation form against Rakkas request. 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
 

Page 110



 

Page 111



 

 

Page 112



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 20:04 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas Restaurant 365-369 Green Lanes Licensing Review 

 

I am writing in relation to the licensing review for Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, Harringay, 
London N4 1DYS. I live on Lothair Road North and the disruption that the restaurant is causing 
to our daily lives is significant.  
 

The noise of the music, especially during the summer, is incredibly excessive and played all 
evening long. It makes the garden almost unusable for most activities due to repetitive 
annoying music. For example, the song Wild Thoughts by DJ Khalid is played every single day 
without exception and it gets very irritating. They are treating the venue as a nightclub rather 
than a restaurant. They need to either invest in sound proofing and air con so that they can 
shut the windows or to turn the music down.  
 

There has also been an increase in the amount of broken bottles and drink cans left on the road 
by people leaving the restaurant, as well as large noisy groups late at night and the amount of 
customers parking on the road mean that the local residents are unable to park. 
 

All these issues have been steadily getting worse over time and I hope these comments are 
taken into consideration when undertaking the licensing review. 
 

Kind regards, 
 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 23:13 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objection to Rakkas 

 

Re - Objection to Rakkas 

 

General - Their recent behaviour includes disingenuously engaging with individuals in Lothair 
Road North, only to publicly distort and misrepresent their opinions for their own gain. This 
shows that they are an untrustworthy operation, unlikely to fulfil their obligations or keep any 
promises they make.  
 

Prevention of Crime and Disorder   
There has been a surge in criminal behaviour to do with cars. There have been stolen 
licence plates, broken windows and dangerous driving in the last 3 months. I have 
witnessed dangerous driving from someone who subsequently parked and entered the 
club, and I reported this incident to police in November 2022.   
  
Drugs - There is an increase in people appearing to trade drugs in our road. This was 
already a problem before Rakkas opened but has worsened. I have had to move drug-
users off elderly neighbours' doorsteps. There are often high-end cars driving slowly 
around, having a brief meeting with a young person on the street, then driving on.  
   
Bouncers - Proof that this is a club not a restaurant, the bouncers are there to control and 
intimidate people. I have had to comfort one middle-aged neighbour who was 
aggressively approached and berated by the bouncers, leaving her scared. They do not 
show interest in protecting the wider community.    
   
Public Safety   
At times the pavement by the entrance is blocked by large groups of young people 
waiting to enter, or standing to chat. Pedestrians are forced onto the railings or even into 
the road. The management seem to have made no effort to manage their customers or 
accommodate the passing public.   
   
The numbers and type of vehicles and people have changed the feel of the area and 
the residential street is much busier. I have witnessed illegal speeds and dangerous driving 
from customers leaving Rakkas club. I have witnessed a young woman who works at Rakkas 
club being apparently harassed by a man outside my house. 

   
Prevention of Public Nuisance   
Parking -There has been a surge in parking pressure as the Rakkas website instructs 
visitors to park in our residential road. Residents are now finding it challenging to park 
from early evening on. My own drive is now continually blocked by visitors after 7pm.  
 

Noise pollution - Rakkas creates noise pollution for the mixed generations of our road, 
from the very elderly who have been living here since the 1960s, to Looked After young 

Page 114



people being fostered in our neighbourhood, to families with babies and young children. 
It ruins our ability to enjoy our previously quiet homes and in summer our gardens. The 
back extension of Rakkas is huge and full of people too late into the night so close to a 
street full of domestic dwellings. As I sleep in the front of the house I am woken every 
night by people leaving the venue. 
   
Rubbish and refuse - The side entrance is in Lothair Road North and we now have 
to live with and walk past smelly rubbish bins – there are around three as it is such a 
large place, and they are often overflowing. Rubbish is not well managed. This general 
lack of care for the local area has been obvious from the start (see above in General).   
   
Protection of Children from Harm   
As a Foster Carer employed by Haringey, I feel it is paramount that we protect our 
Looked After Children from the anti-social activities we’ve noticed around Rakkas. We 
have at least two Looked After Children that I know of in the vicinity, possibly more. My 
own current foster placement is scared of the bouncers whom he has to pass every day 
on the way home from school. He experiences them negatively, finding them scary and 
intimidating. He has also been exposed to the drug-related behaviour in our road (see 
above). He has to scooter into the road to avoid Rakkas club’s rubbish on the way to 
school.   
  
There is a second foster placement nearer to the club, and he is already battling to 
study for GCSEs. How is it going to impact on childrens' schooling when there is late 

noise coming from the club outside space on Sunday nights? This is obviously re-victimising 
the most vulnerable members of our community, it is adversely affecting them and their 
future. It is unacceptable, especially when it is purely for the sake of commercial gain. 
Surely they deserve a more positive, family-friendly, residential environment in which 
they can make progress safely?  
  

Best regards  
  
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 05 January 2023 10:57 
To: Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk> 
Cc: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: RAKKAS ENGAGEMENT 

 

Thank you, 

 

I too received a visit from the owner of Rakkas and was pleased they were making a (belated) 

attempt to reach out to the community. I filled in their form, largely indicating that I was 

bothered by noise and thought they could do more about it. They were friendly, inviting us for a 

meal on the house, but dismissive of concerns, denying that they were applying for longer hours 

and blaming noise on the pub opposite. 

 

For the record, my main concerns are: 

1) Noise in summer. They play very loud music on summer afternoons which makes it very 

unrestful to be in one's garden. When I was speaking to them they said "this is why we built the 

roof" but there was plenty of noise in the summer just gone, after their reopening with the roof. 

2) Noise in the street. Taxis honking horns, drunken shouting, cars idling etc. Mainly between 

11pm and midnight. They claimed this could be to do with customers form the pub (who, it is 

true, can get quite rowdy in the small garden on summer nights) and this may be true. But it 

doesn't feel coincidental that I never noticed it before Rakkas' opening as a more nightclubby-

looking venue attracting a young crowd.  

 

I don't wish to be a NIMBY. This part of Green Lanes is lively and I knew that when I moved 

here in 2014. But there's a difference between the atmosphere in the rest of the area's restaurants 

and the more late-night, music-based vibe they are cultivating in their restaurant. I note that other 

bars (eg Brouhaha and the Salisbury) are very mindful of their neighbours, bringing people 

inside quite early and encouraging quiet leaving.  

 

Thanks and all best, 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXX Lothair Road North 

N4 1ER 

XXXXXXXXXX 

 

On Wed, 4 Jan 2023 at 18:29, Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear residents, 

We have received communication from residents expressing concern about some door knocking 

and engagement being carried out by Rakkas. 

We can confirm that some survey papers were submitted yesterday by Rakkas initially labelled 

as a petition but we did not share the same view as the business on this matter.  Instead the 

document has been accepted as a business feedback survey that Rakkas may wish to rely on at 

the hearing on the 19th January. 

Page 116

mailto:Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk


The onus is on Rakkas to notify the Authority if they are wishing to call any witnesses that may 

have completed the survey to appear at the hearing to answer any questions on their behalf. 

Please note that your representation in relation to the Variation application still stands and can 

only be withdrawn by yourselves and not by the business. 

Residents are also writing in to support Rakkas in relation to the review matter following the 

doorstep engagement that has been undertaken. The business is permitted to engage in this way. 

Please do not assume that your previous representations in relation to the Variation application 

will automatically be carried over on the review application, that will not be the case. 

The finish period for the review consultation remains the 5th January 2023. 

Hope the above is helpful. 

Regards 

Daliah Barrett 

Licensing Team Leader 

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be subject to legal privilege and 

are intended only for the person(s) or organisation(s) to whom this email is addressed. Any 

unauthorised use, retention, distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you have 

received this email in error, please notify the system administrator at Haringey Council 

immediately and delete this e-mail from your system. Although this e-mail and any attachments 

are believed to be free of any virus or other defect which might affect any computer or system 

into which they are received and opened, it is the responsibility of the recipient to ensure they are 

virus free and no responsibility is accepted for any loss or damage from receipt or use thereof. 

All communications sent to or from external third party organisations may be subject to 

recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation. 

 
 

   

 
 

 
 

Page 117



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXSent: 05 January 2023 12:42 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: comment on Rakkas 

 

Hello, 

 

 I didn't remember receiving a reply on this, so checked back and realised that I should have 

packaged my comment inside a comment form, which I now have, and which is attached. 

 

The comment in the form is the same comment as the one above, just packaged in a form. 

 

Thank you, 

LH 

 

 

 

On Fri, Dec 16, 2022 at 1:53 PM XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX> wrote: 

Hello, I understand you are reviewing the current licence for Rakkas, 365-369 Green Lanes for 

possible breaches of its existing licence and have reached out to the community for comments, 

which will be anonymised. 

 

I have no specific evidence or dates, only a general account, as below. 

 

Since Rakkas has opened, we have had many/repeated issues with the very loud music coming 

from the rear of the business over the back gardens of the houses on the North side of Lothair 

Road North.  We're quite far from Rakkas but even traveling that distance over lots of gardens it 

can still be heard loudly in ours.  It can also be heard inside our house, even when all windows 

and doors have been shut.   

 

Being a real supporter in our high street, I would usually never speak against a small business in 

difficult economic times - but this has been a repeated frustration for us, and I understand the 

situation to be worse for our neighbors who are closer to the restaurant who are getting less 

diffused/louder music than we are. 

 

Please let me know if you need any further information to contextualise or clarify the above. 

 

All best, 

XXXX 

 

Page 118



 

Page 119



 
 

Page 120



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 05 January 2023 23:22 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas  

 

I have lived at XXXX Lothair Road North since 2011. When the initial license application for 

Rakkas was posted I believe that rather early evening hours were specified. It soon became a late 

night place, which seemed odd because I could recall no notice of an application to extend hours. 

I should have seen such a notice even posted in front, since I was walking past the door several 

times a day, taking my son to and from school, and going to Green Lanes shops. You would have 

some official version of the history, but from my standpoint the hours got longer and louder with 

no notice or consultation. 

 

Since Rakkas opened, there have been numerous times when their large rubbish bins have been 

parked on the pavement on Lothair Road North. In the early days they were more or less 

stationed there, and attracted a lot of fly tipping. After numerous complaints by neighbours the 

situation improved, but now and then the bins show up again, for an afternoon, for a day, for a 

couple of days. When they stay long enough they again attract additional, informal, contributions 

of rubbish around them on the pavement. 

 

I surmise that the bin problem owes something to the fact that the bins are kept behind a locked 

door. The door sits flush to the pavement and, contrary to the usual rule for such doors, opens 

outward onto the footway. I am told that on the plans submitted for the establishment, this door 

was labelled "emergency exit only", but in fact it is in heavy use both for the rubbish bins and for 

deliveries. It seems that the owners of this establishment want to have their cake and eat it - the 

extra interior space gained from positioning the exit door as they have, and a door at the back for 

rubbish and deliveries. But what we get for that is a meter or so of steel door swinging out into 

the footway, and now and again rubbish bins and fly tipping on that same footway. 

 

Since Rakkas re-opened in its current enlarged format, there has been an increase in litter where 

cars had been parked on Lothair North, especially on Friday and Saturday nights towards the 

Green Lanes end of the road. 

 

If Rakkas has not, in other respects, honoured the terms of its license, I do not believe that that 

license should be renewed or restored. 

 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

 

Sent from Outlook for iOS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 121

https://aka.ms/o0ukef


From: Cllr Anna Abela <Anna.Abela@haringey.gov.uk>  
Sent: 05 January 2023 23:22 
To: Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk>; Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Representation on the review of Rakkas Bar's License 
 
Dear Licensing Team,  

 

Kindly find attached my representation on the review of Rakkas Bar’s License.  

 

Thank you for considering my representation.  

 

Kind regards,  

Anna 

Anna Abela 
Councillor for Harringay ward  
 
 
Haringey Council Licensing Team  
Alexandra House, Level 4 
10 Station Road,  
Wood Green  
London, N22 7TR        

5th January 2023 
 
Dear Licensing Team 
 
Re: Review of Rakkas Bar License  
 
I am writing to you in my capacity as a local councillor for Harringay ward, where the Rakkas Bar is located, 
to express my strong support for this review of the establishment’s license.  
 
Since being elected to represent Harringay in May, I have already been contacted by several residents who 
live near Rakkas Bar regarding the noise emanating from the premises. Furthermore, residents in Lothair 
Road North, Venetia Road and Tancred Road frequently write to me, my fellow ward councillors, and 
Haringey Council’s Antisocial Behaviour and Noise enforcement officers regarding the noise pollution 
caused by patrons raising their voices while loitering outside the premises or returning to their cars. Patrons 
can often be heard shouting, revving their engines, and playing loud car stereo music, disturbing the peace 
in a residential area.  
 
Despite repeated interventions by Haringey Council’s Enforcement officers, I have not seen any meaningful 
efforts to improve noise management and address antisocial behaviour by the owners of Rakkas Bar, both 
within their own premises and in relation to patrons leaving their premises. I therefore urge you to consider 
this long-standing adverse impact on community wellbeing in the context of a review of the establishment’s 
licence.  
 
Thank you for considering my representation. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
Anna Abela 
Councillor (Harringay ward) 

 
 

Page 122



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 17:44 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk>; Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas Licensing Application 

 

Hello, 

 

I just wanted to re-send my thoughts on the restaurant 'Rakkas' which operates at the end of 

Lothair Road North. I've re-submitted my previous thoughts below but it seems that since that 

time, representatives of Rakkas have been knocking on doors on our streets. One neighbour says 

she was asked to fill in a survey, which she did and in doing-so, highlighted her concerns with 

the current operation. Rakkas then it would seem have mis-used that survey as a 'letter of 

support' against her will which seem underhand and also, fraudulent. This is only adding to the 

concern in the local community and hopefully you will find this information useful as well as the 

other email I know you've received from the local area. 

 

Best regards, 

 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXX Venetia Road, N4 1EJ 

 

 

Hello, 

 With regards to the application for extended licensing hours for Rakkas - 365-369 Green 

Lanes, Harringay, London, N4 1DY / Ward - Harringay, we would like to formally 
complain as I know a large number of the local residents do also. 

 Currently, the noise, litter, aggravation and illegal parking is making the current 

situation a nightmare, especially of the residents of Lothair Road North. Since they've 
opened we've had a huge increase in litter in the streets ( as well as industrial waste ), 
an increase in violent events and abusive behaviour and they are apparently in constant 
breach of their current license with the noise way past what they should be allowed.  

Page 123



Green Lanes has a wonderful history of being able to make the hospitality industry work 
in harmony with the large residential community. But Rakkas has not adhered to any 
code to ensure that the relationship the residents have with the restaurants and bars 
remains a good one. It has made the neighbourhood and surrounding area a more 
volatile, noisy, dirty area and as a community, we strongly oppose the idea of making 
this situation worse. 

  

Best regards, 

  

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX Venetia Road, N4 1EJ 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 03 January 2023 15:08 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Cc: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
Subject: Review of Premises Licence for Rakkas 

 

We would like to support the licence review initiated by ASB Enforcement against Rakkas at 

365-369 Green Lanes. 

 

We have attached a pdf file detailing our reasons and attached a sample of video files as 

supporting evidence  

 

Regards 

 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
 

 

Page 125



 

Page 126



  

Page 127



 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 128



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 30 December 2022 16:44 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Review of licence for Rakkas 
 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXX Lothair Road North 

N4 1ER 

 

Premises in question: 

Rakkas 

365-369 Green Lanes, Harringay, London, N4 1DY 

Ward – Harringay 

 

We wish to comment on how Rakkas operates from the experience of local residents, ahead of 

the Council’s review in January.   

  

General 

Rakkas already creates a number of problems for the area and local residents. Since the new, 

enlarged premises opened it has changed the nature of the area, so that what was a quiet 

cluster of three residential streets has become a great deal busier and noisier, into the late 

evening. It is also out of keeping with the look and feel of the other restaurants in Green Lanes. 

 

Rakkas is described as a restaurant but appears to be more than that. The website shows 

performances of (very lively-looking) live music, and features activities such as fire-eating, 

giving the impression of a floor-show in addition to food and drinks, and could be seen as 

encouraging rowdy behaviour. In fact, the website specifies ‘Friday – Sunday Entertainment, 

Live Music – Fire – Magic’. There is also a Shisha bar. Rakkas is a large set up, with a 

substantial rear extension which causes significant nuisance for local residents.  

 

If this were simply a neighbourhood restaurant serving food and drink its scale and impact on 

the area and the local community would be considerably less and likely to be acceptable. The 

problems arise from a combination of: 

 

 its size (three shop fronts in one each with a rear extension, which attracts large 

numbers of customers 

 the rear extension itself is huge, actually touches the wall of the first house in Lothair 

Road North – this extends the nuisance into the private gardens behind, and is only 

yards from the bedrooms of the adjoining houses. The extension is of a scale and 

intrusion that it’s hard to understand how it got planning permission at all.  

 

Problems – these include:  

 

 Parking and consequential nuisance - the residential streets nearby are quiet and we 

are a stable community of families and older people. The Rakkas website’s FAQs directs 

Page 129



guests to park here after 6pm which can lead to congestion (often late into the night at 

weekends) and recurring noise from vehicles and voices as drivers reversing up and 

down the streets and speed away. The visiting cars appear to be high end and could 

attract crime, and the customer demographic suggests many come from outside the 

borough which may account for the volume of traffic and changes the look and feel of 

the area. The website also suggests parking in the retail park across Green Lanes, 

whereas that parking should be for shoppers.  

 

 Security – it’s hard to understand why a regular restaurant should need bouncers, which 

creates a sense of unease. The individuals themselves are silent and standoffish, rarely 

interact with members of the community (I walk past them most days) and when they do 

it is negative – recently interrupting a conversation with my sister in a law to current me 

in a hostile fashion, when in fact they had misheard, after which there was no apology. 

They seem to see their role as protecting Rakkas, rather than public safety. The fact that 

Rakkas was found to be in breach of Covid regulations on more than one occasion (at a 

time when they also had bouncers) does not inspire confidence in their probity and good 

management, especially now that it has more than doubled in size. 

 

 Congestion – nor do they seem to do anything to facilitate passage on the pavement. At 

busy times the area by the entrance is blocked by large parties waiting to enter, or 

leaving and standing to chat, making it difficult to pass without stepping into the road; the 

bouncers seem to make no attempt to manage this or show any regard for local people 

passing. This is also quite near a bus stop, which all adds to the congestion and tension. 

 

 Rubbish and refuse - is also a problem.  The side entrance is in (residential) Lothair 

Road North and we now have to live with and walk past three large rubbish bins – often 

smelly and overflowing. Rubbish was very bad at first, with furniture packaging all over 

the pavement, and food. It remains not always well managed, with bins full to the brim 

and their contents sometimes spread over the pavement. This general lack of care for 

the local area has been clear from the start – several of the longest lorries we have ever 

seen turned into Lothair Road North to deliver the furniture, so cars had to be moved, 

with no notice or appreciation of this from the owner. And ahead of and upon opening we 

received no information or assurances about the approach of such a large and imposing 

social centre. There seems to be no notice, interest in or care taken by the 

owner/management regarding the impact on local people. Very recently (in the last week 

or so) we have noticed that the bins have been moved inside, and hope this will 

continue. 

 

 Noise - noise from the premises  is probably the single most negative effect on the 

neighbourhood, particularly at the rear. While we are half-way up Lothair Road North, 

and so not as badly affected as others closer to Green Lanes, the noise is still a 

disturbance, particularly interfering with our quiet enjoyment of the rooms overlooking 

the rear, and our use of the gardens. Over the summer months were aware of noise on 

several occasions late at night around 11pm; I have a recording from 28 July from my 

garden, where you can hear shouting and groups of men’s voices whooping, and there 

were several other instances. This further confirms the concern that Rakkas is more of a 

Page 130



club than a restaurant, with the noise sounding like rowdy behaviour. Had the rear of the 

extension been smaller, and just used for dining, it is unlikely that it would have this 

impact on residents. And such a building seems particularly inappropriate only a few feet 

from the rear rooms and gardens of a street of domestic properties. There is a sign 

asking customers to be quiet when they leave, but this is small and on the outside, which 

sems odd. 

 

Conclusion 

Rakkas casts a shadow over the whole area, whether we’re walking along Green Lanes or in 

and around our own homes and gardens.  We have outlined above some of the impacts in 

terms of parking, numbers of visitors (who come from other areas, hence the parking issues), 

and unpleasant street presence, with the counterproductive presence of the bouncers. In 

summary, there are two major issues with Rakkas. First it is out of keeping for both a residential 

area and for Green Lanes itself. Second the owner has made no contact or communication with 

the local community, and seems to have no interest in either being a good neighbour or about 

the impact of his activities on the locality. We have never been provided with any information 

about who to contact there is we have a concern or complain.  

 

We hope this information gives a sense of the impact of Rakkas on the local area, and is helpful 

when considering the terms of the licence.     

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 02 January 2023 23:12 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas licensing act review 

 

Hi 

 

I live in lothair road north and have been made aware of the licence review for Rakkas  365-369 
Green Lanes, Harringay, London, N4 1DY 
Ward - Harringay  
 

Since opening there has been a significant increase in: 
1) anti-social behaviour - fights, people playing loud music from cars, shouting in the 
street at venue closure times/late evening 

2) additional traffic and congestion - huge increase in cars parking within or outside 
bays preventing local residents from being able to park near homes, or obstructing 
roads/paths because not parked within bays 

3) litter/mess/noise 

4) large intimidating bouncers on street even during the day/morning 
 

It is a residential area with a significant number of young families and older residents.  
Having what is fast becoming a night club at the end of the street is extremely 
distressing for local residents - particularly with safety concerns in the area and an 
increase in noise, traffic, litter and mess   
 
 

Yours sincerely 

 
 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

 

Sent from my iPhone 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 132



From: LCSP [Ladder Community Safety Partnership] <lcsp@blueyonder.co.uk>  
Sent: 03 January 2023 15:50 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk>; Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Review of a Premises Licence- Rakkas, 365-369 Green Lanes, N4 (WK/555222) 

 
Please find attached the LCSP's letter concerning this review. 

Ian Sygrave 

Chair LCSP 

 

 

LADDER COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 
Lcsp@blueyonder.co.uk 

 
 

Haringey Council Licensing Team  

Alexandra Park House, Level 4 

10 Station Road,  

Wood Green  

London, N22 7TR 
 
 
3 January 2023 
 
 

Review of the Premises Licence: 365-369 Green Lanes, N4 1DY 
 
Introduction 
I am writing to you on behalf of the local community in my capacity as elected Chair of both the 
Ladder Community Safety Partnership (LCSP) and the Harringay Ward Police Panel.  The LCSP is 
an umbrella organization containing many individual members but also representatives of 
Neighbourhood Watches and Residents’ Associations throughout the Ward including Green 
Lanes. We are an independent group, although we work in partnership with many other key 
stakeholders to improve the quality of life for local people. The Police Panel obviously works 
closely with our local officers and sets priorities which aim to keep the area safe, and free from 
crime, antisocial behaviour and other nuisances. 
 
Our members – and particularly those who live near the venue, warmly welcome and strongly 
support the Review of the Premises Licence by the Council in its role as a Responsible Authority. 
We also support and agree with the revised conditions as proposed in the Review. 
 
As the  Review application makes clear,  there have been numerous breaches of the licence 
witnessed on multiple occasions between March and November 2022 by the  Council’s  
Enforcement Officers. In addition there have been over 20 complaints by local residents.  
 

Page 133



Members of the  Committee will be aware that the venue’s owners have been seeking longer 
hours in the back addition area, despite this serious record of non-compliance. At the time of 
writing this representation (3 January), this previous application for a variation had not yet been 
heard, but the arguments against allowing the extension of existing hours in the back addition 
are obviously the same as those for  ensuring that these hours  (ie. 21.00 for this section of the 
premises) are fully respected and carried out. 
 
We have  therefore copied below our previous letter (dated 8 Dec) which was submitted in 
respect of the Variation  application at the end of  last  year.  The arguments which are made in 
it fully explain why we believe that the Licence Review is necessary and why a very clear and 
easily enforceable time  limit of 21.00 is required in that part of premises which has caused so 
much public  nuisance since the venue reopened in March 2022. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this representation. 
 
Ian Sygrave 
Chair, on behalf of the LCSP 
Chair, on behalf of the Harringay Police Panel 
 
 
Copy of letter of 8 December 2022 as noted above: 
 
 

LADDER COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 
Lcsp@blueyonder.co.uk 

 
 
 

Haringey Council Licensing Team  

Alexandra Park House, Level 4 

10 Station Road,  

Wood Green  

London, N22 7TR 
 
 
8 December 2022 
 
 

Variation  to the Premises Licence: 365-369 Green Lanes, N4 1DY 
 
 
Introduction 
I am writing to you on behalf of the local community in my capacity as elected Chair of both the 
Ladder Community Safety Partnership (LCSP) and the Harringay Ward Police Panel.  The LCSP is 

Page 134



an umbrella organization containing many individual members but also representatives of 
Neighbourhood Watches and Residents’ Associations throughout the Ward including Green 
Lanes. We are an independent group, although we work in partnership with many other key 
stakeholders to improve the quality of life for local people. The Police Panel obviously works 
closely with our local officers and sets priorities which aim to keep the area safe, and free from 
crime, antisocial behaviour and other nuisances. 
 
Our members – and particularly those who live near the premises (in flats along Green Lanes and 
to the rear in Lothair Road North, Venetia and Tancred Roads) are very concerned at the prospect 
of the back addition/outside area remaining open until 23.30 (Sun-Wed) and 00.00 (Thur-Sat). 
The council’s Licensing Policy 2021-26 (p8) states that its fundamental purpose ‘is to ensure that 
licensed premises have a positive impact on their locality’ but our members are not convinced 
that such aims will be achieved via the proposals in this application. 
 
Concerns are based on two of the key licensing objectives 

- The prevention of crime and disorder 
- The prevention of public nuisance 

and on the way in which the premises has operated since it re-opened in March 2022 as a much 
larger venue (triple frontage plus mezzanine and across four premises to the rear) 
 
 
1. Existing Premises Licence: Noise 
 
 
The existing license granted by the Committee ‘considered that the concerns raised by the objectors 
in their written and oral representations were reasonable concerns. The Committee was satisfied that 
a premises of this size would attract a lot of patrons and would need a comprehensive set of conditions 
to manage the likely impact of noise and other nuisance on local residents. The Committee accepted 
that the licence holder was offering a different business to the previous owner but retained some 
concerns about the manner in which it was proposed that the premises would operate. 
 
As regards the outside area, the Committee considered that the outside space needed to be managed 
in a way that would promote the licensing objectives with respect to nuisance, which had been a 
concern of the residents and decided that closing the outside area by 9pm would reduce the risk of 
the premises undermining the licensing objective with respect to public nuisance’. 
 
These comments make it very clear that the Committee had concerns about noise nuisance coming 
from the area currently under review – concerns which, as we will demonstrate, have been proved 
to be only too well founded. Moreover, if the variation being applied for were to be granted, the 
Committee would in effect be overturning and countermanding its own closely argued decision, 
which would be a very strange outcome. 

 
 
 

Page 135



2.  Existing Premises Licence: Planning 
It is well known that licensing and planning are two separate regimes, but they are often also 
mutually dependent. The Council’sLicensing Policy 2021-26 (p13) makes this clear when it 
explains that all planning permissions and conditions must be respected. 
 
In this context, the Licensing Committee’s decision stated that although it‘was not responsible for 
planning matters, it noted that there were some planning issues relating to the retractable roofing 
proposed and extraction system that required attention and wished as an informative matter only, to 
gently encourage the applicant to get planning matters resolved to the satisfaction of the planning 
authority without delay’. 
 
The applicant has signally failed to follow this advice, to the extent that LBH Planning have issued an 
Enforcement Notice requiring  

 The removal of the unauthorized single story rear extension,with a retractable roof, in its 
entirety 

 Cease the mixed use of the premises as a restaurant/shisha lounge 

 Remove all 12 canopies that have been installed at the front of the building 

The applicant has appealed the Enforcement Notice, and a decision by the Planning 
Inspectorate is awaited. 
 
We believe that it is important for the Licensing Committee to be aware of this situation 
because the Licensing Policy 2021-26 (Section 5.1) states ‘it is strongly recommended that 
applications …. should normally be from businesses with relevant planning consent for the 
property concerned. This applies equally to applications seeking a license to facilitate a change 
of use/type of operation’. 
 
 

3.  Prevention of Public Nuisance, and other issues arising since the re-opening of the premises 

 

The cavalier attitude displayed towards planning requirements has been repeated across the 

board. 

 

 Noise nuisance, both from the premises and from customers returning to their cars. 
 

 Unpleasant smoke and cooking odours and smells. 
 
 Use of the rear extension with noise and light pollution outside permitted hours (i.e., after 

2100). 
 
 Overflowing commercial waste bins on the pavement in Lothair Road North for extended 

periods (e.g., up to 4 weeks at a time). 
 

Page 136



 An unsafe emergency access door opening outwards onto Lothair Road North (in breach of 
the Highways Act). 

 
 Questionable use of 145 Lothair Road North which is adjacent to Rakkas. The rear of 145 

LRN has been linked to Rakkas via a doorway in the garden of 145 LRN. This was done to 
facilitate access by Rakkas staff to a newly constructed outbuilding in the rear of 145 LRN 
which is used for storageandaccess to the house which has been used for staff 
accommodation and an office. 

 
 Shisha use in enclosed areas (in breach of the Health Act). 

 
 
While not all of these issues may be matters for licensing concern, they paint a very clear picture 
of a total lack of respect for, and compliance with, rules and regulations across a wide variety of 
areas including licensing, planning, building control, health and safety,and waste disposal. 
 
In order to deal with the key licensing issue of the Prevention of Public Nuisance, we will focus 
our attention on noise nuisance, light pollution and noxious smells which are, according to the 
Licensing Policy 2021-26, ‘principal concerns’ (section 20). 
 
Noise nuisance has been a really serious problem for residents living to the rear of the premises, 
especially in Lothair Road North.  In the warm weather, the roof and side windows of the rear 
extension have been opened (contrary to requirements), meaning much more noise has escaped.  
This has been especially problematic when live music was being played.  We are aware of tenants 
at one of the houses close to Rakkas who have curtailed their tenancy arrangements as the noise 
interfered too much with their studies. 
 
LBH enforcement officers have witnessed loud music from the premises likely to be a public 
nuisance in March this year.  They issued a formal warning notice having confirmed the external 
area was in use after 11pm.  Unfortunately, this had no effect, as residents continued to report 
noise nuisance.  To our knowledge there have been over 20 reports submitted by residents who 
have been adversely affected.  This led to further Enforcement officer visits in July, August and 
September.  The colder weather has eased the problem for now, but that is not the point.  
Residents should not have to put up with an unacceptable level of noise every time decent 
weather occurs.  This also effectively reduces residents’ enjoyment of their own back gardens, 
and even intrudes inside properties (as noted above) when residents are trying to work or study, 
or simply relax. 
 
A further noise-related problem occurs when patrons of Rakkas return to their cars, parked in 
Lothair Road North, Venetia Road, Tancred Road and others, late at night.  They are very often in 
high spirits after rounds of drinks and a night out, and raised voices, shouting, slammed car doors, 
car stereos and revved engines all cause huge disruption when ambient noise levels are very low 
in otherwise quiet residential streets.  As the Council’s Licensing Policy 2021-26 states, ‘A licence 
holder’s responsibility does not end at the door of their premises’ (section 9.6). 

Page 137



 
The unauthorised use of the rear extension after permitted hours has also led to light pollution 
for residents in Lothair Road North.  The extension is a very large glazed structure extending over 
the rear of four premises and residents are aware of bright light shining long after the 21:00 
deadline, with customers clearly visible moving around in this area.  Conversely, when the 
windows have been retracted anyone in the rear of Rakkas can see straight through into the back 
gardens of Lothair Road North, invading the privacy of local residents.  There has also been a 
need for residents to file complaints via the Council’s website about unpleasant cooking smells 
emanating from the premises.  
 
4.  Conclusion 
 
In the light of all this evidence, it would obviously be totally inappropriate to reward a track 
record of lack of compliance with extended hours.  The premises should be concentrating on 
abiding by the existing terms of its licence (and complying with a wide range of other regulatory 
regimes) rather than looking to operate for even longer hours, with even greater potential for 
noise nuisance in a building which LBH Planning believes to be unauthorised. 
 
We therefore urge the Licensing Committee to refuse permission for the extended hours which 
are being sought for the rear of the premises.  By doing so, the Committee would support and 
endorse the decision which it has already made in the original and current licence, to limit the 
hours for the back addition to 21:00 daily. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this representation. 
 
Ian Sygrave 
Chair, on behalf of the LCSP 
Chair, on behalf of the Harringay Police Panel 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 138



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 01 January 2023 13:03 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: comment on a licensing review Rakkas 

 

My name is XXXXXXXXXXXXX.  I live at XXX Lothair Road North, London N4 1EW.    

 

This is the residential road affected by the activities at Rakkas restaurant/club on Green Lanes.    

 

At the beginning of December I sent my objections relating to the fact that Rakkas had applied to 

extend its hours of operation.    

 

Now the council has set up a review of the Rakkas’ licence on the basis that it is felt that Rakkas 

has not complied with the terms of its existing licence.  

 

I understand I must now also send in my views on this review and these are listed below.  

 

VIEWS ON COUNCIL REVIEW OF RAKKAS LICENCE  FROM DEBORAH POTTS, 

xxxx  
 

Application Number…………not known…….   

 

Name of Licensee……Rakkas………….   

 

Name of Premises (if applicable)…Rakkas……………..   

 

Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect)……365-369 Green Lanes, Harringay, 

London, N4 1DY  

 

I agree with the Council that Rakkas is not complying with its original licence conditions and 

would support measures to enforce its compliance with those conditions.  

 

My views are affected by these points:  

 

The Prevention of Public Nuisance  
 

Currently Rakkas is already causing many problems for residents in Lothair Road North.  It 

backs onto our road and has built an extension out from behind the Green Lane premises which 

affects us.    

 

I believe that the size and nature of this extension does not comply with what was allowed under 

its original planning application and that this should be dealt with.  There is already serious noise 

nuisance from that area which is a major concern.    

 

Also it is exceedingly difficult for residents in Lothair Road North to find parking at  the 

weekends in particular, and late in the evening generally.  

 

Page 139



The nuisance that is being caused is very upsetting, and extremely so for those nearest the Green 

Lanes end of the road.   The noise goes on beyond the times allowed under its licence.  

 

There are also lots of people milling about late at night in our road, getting into their cars, and 

talking loudly and this often wakes me.  

 

There have already been many objections raised about Rakkas with the council and am 

relieved  that the Council now may be taking action because Rakkas has already been in breach 

of its current license on occasion.  

 

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder   
 

There is drug dealing occurring at the end of our road near Green Lanes. It is extremely obvious 

and makes me feel unsafe when walking there late at night.  I do not know to what extent this is 

related to Rakkas but it seems to have arisen since the premises open.  If there is drinking there at 

hours beyond those licenced I feel this problem will worsen.  

 

Public Safety  
 

As noted above, I already feel unsafe at night because of the drug dealing. There are also lots of 

people milling about late at night in our road, getting into their cars, and talking loudly and this is 

not a safe environment for residents either.   

 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

 

 
From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

Sent: 05 January 2023 22:32 

To: Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk> 

Cc: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 

Subject: Re: RAKKAS ENGAGEMENT 

With reference to your email below I thought I would just state that I have heard through our 

neighbourhood WhatsApp group that apparently Rakkas has been suggesting email messages be sent by 

some of those they spoke to on the doorstep,  the text of which bears absolutely no relationship to what 

the people actually said to those who were doing the survey. In other words the text of the email 

suggested that the resident was unconcerned about the Rakkas licencing issues when in fact they had 

told them that they were very concerned. 

It maybe this has already been pointed out to you but  I did think this was somewhat outrageous and 

wanted to make sure that it was put on the record that it was occurring. Yours sincerely Deborah Potts 

On 4 Jan 2023 18:29, Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear residents, 

Page 140

mailto:Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk


We have received communication from residents expressing concern about some door knocking 

and engagement being carried out by Rakkas. 

We can confirm that some survey papers were submitted yesterday by Rakkas initially labelled 

as a petition but we did not share the same view as the business on this matter.  Instead the 

document has been accepted as a business feedback survey that Rakkas may wish to rely on at 

the hearing on the 19th January. 

The onus is on Rakkas to notify the Authority if they are wishing to call any witnesses that may 

have completed the survey to appear at the hearing to answer any questions on their behalf. 

Please note that your representation in relation to the Variation application still stands and can 

only be withdrawn by yourselves and not by the business. 

Residents are also writing in to support Rakkas in relation to the review matter following the 

doorstep engagement that has been undertaken. The business is permitted to engage in this way. 

Please do not assume that your previous representations in relation to the Variation application 

will automatically be carried over on the review application, that will not be the case. 

The finish period for the review consultation remains the 5th January 2023. 

Hope the above is helpful. 

Regards 

Daliah Barrett 

Licensing Team Leader 

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be subject to legal privilege and 

are intended only for the person(s) or organisation(s) to whom this email is addressed. Any 

unauthorised use, retention, distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you have 

received this email in error, please notify the system administrator at Haringey Council 

immediately and delete this e-mail from your system. Although this e-mail and any attachments 

are believed to be free of any virus or other defect which might affect any computer or system 

into which they are received and opened, it is the responsibility of the recipient to ensure they are 

virus free and no responsibility is accepted for any loss or damage from receipt or use thereof. 

All communications sent to or from external third party organisations may be subject to 

recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 141



From: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
Sent: 04 January 2023 21:04 
To: Daliah Barrett <Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk>; Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rakkas license review 

 

To whom it may concern 

 

I have received the below email from Rakkas on Green Lanes. I understand there is a licence 

review ongoing currently. 

 

Some Rakkas staff came to my doorstep at the weekend and asked me to respond to a survey in 

return for a discount.  

 

I filled in the form. My response made clear that we can hear noise from Rakkas in our house 

and, even though it does not personally affect me (as we live quite far away), I suggested that to 

improve things they should not play music outdoors. Specifically, over the last summer we could 

hear music emanating from their premises until late in the evening, both when in the garden and 

in our house with the windows open.  

 

I have today received the below email which suggests that I have shown my support for Rakkas 

by filling in a form. I am concerned that my response to their survey (and potentially those of 

other respondents) may be misrepresented to you as supportive of their application/review. This 

is not the case. I simply provided my views in the hope that Rakkas would act to improve the 

situation.  

 

XXXXXXXX 

 

---------- Forwarded message --------- 

From: Reha Sookraz <rehasookraz@licensing182.co.uk> 

Date: Wed, 4 Jan 2023 at 15:43 

Subject: Support for Rakkas 

To: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

 

Hi XXXXXXXXXXXX 
 
Hope you are having a good start to the year. I am contacting you on behalf of Rakkas 365-369 
Green Lanes, London N4 1DY with regards to the review application. 
 
You have shown your support for the restaurant by filling a form, can you please do it in a 
different format so that it can be submitted to the council for the review hearing? 
 
Can you please email the following to licensing@haringey.gov.uk before midnight tomorrow 
5th Jan 2023: 
 
  

Page 142

mailto:rehasookraz@licensing182.co.uk
https://www.google.com/maps/search/369+Green+Lanes,+London+N4+1DY?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/369+Green+Lanes,+London+N4+1DY?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:licensing@haringey.gov.uk


Dear Licensing 
  
My name is XXXXXXXXXXXX (105 Lothair Road North, N4 1ER) and I am writing in support of 
Rakkas 365-369 Green Lanes, London N4 1DY in relation to a review application of its premises 
licence dated 9th December 2022. 
  
I live in close proximity to the premises and never had any issues with the owner nor any of the 
patrons, especially in relation to public nuisance.  
  
I believe the premises contributes to our community and promotes the four licensing objectives. 
  
Please can you take this representation into account when evaluating this review application. 
  
  
Yours faithfully, 
XXXXXXXXXXXXX 
 
  
Please let me know if you have any issues with the above and when you have done so. 
 
Thank you for your help. 
 
Kind regards, 
Reha Sookraz 

Associate of Duncan Craig 

Licensing 182 Limited 

W |  www.licensingbarrister.co.uk 

T |  07594 910323 

 
This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If 
you have received this email in error, please notify the system manager. This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the 
individual named. If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this email. Please notify the sender immediately 
by e-mail if you have received this email by mistake and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that 
disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited. 
 
Although the company has taken reasonable precautions to ensure no viruses are present in this email, the company cannot accept responsibility for 
any loss or damage arising from the use of this email or attachments. 
 
 
 

Page 143

https://www.google.com/maps/search/105+Lothair+Road+North,+N4+1ER?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/369+Green+Lanes,+London+N4+1DY?entry=gmail&source=g
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.licensingbarrister.co.uk%2F&data=05%7C01%7Clicensingonline%40birmingham.gov.uk%7C0da15f0e75ac49e2072008da63ed63d1%7C699ace67d2e44bcdb303d2bbe2b9bbf1%7C0%7C0%7C637932168502383949%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2FqckSrTvpSboAcerd9nkNJzfMdnJyIO%2FWiAeOflVonk%3D&reserved=0


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 5 

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY, 2ND JULY, 2021, 2.00 PM - 3.20 PM 
AND ON TUESDAY 27TH JULY, 2021, 7.00 PM - 8.25 PM 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Sheila Peacock (Vice-Chair, in the Chair), Councillor Viv Ross, and 
Councillor Yvonne Say 

 
 

1. FILMING AT MEETINGS  
 
The Chair referred to the notice of filming at meetings and this information was noted. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that, it being a special meeting of the Sub-Committee, under Part Four, 
Section B, Paragraph 17 of the Council’s Constitution, no other business would be 
considered at the meeting. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

5. SUMMARY OF PROCEDURE  
 
The Chair provided a summary of the procedure for the meeting. 
 
 

6. APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE AT 365-369 GREEN LANES, 
LONDON, N4  
 
Daliah Barrett, Licensing Officer, introduced the report which presented an application 
for a new premises licence for 365-369 Green Lanes, London, N4. It was explained 
that the application requested a licence for late night refreshment from 2300 to 0200 
hours on Friday-Saturday and for the sale of alcohol on the premises from 1100 to 
2300 hours on Sunday-Thursday and 1100 to 0200 hours on Friday-Saturday, with 
public access from 0600 to 2330 hours on Sunday-Thursday and 0600 to 0230 hours 
on Friday-Saturday. 
 
The Licensing Officer explained that the applicant had submitted further 
communications to confirm the following amendments to the application: 

Page 169



 

 

 

 The sale of alcohol and provision of late night refreshment was now requested to 
cease at 2330 hours with the premises closing at 0000 hours on every day of the 
week. 

 No regulated entertainment in the form of amplified music would be provided after 
2300 hours in the garden area. 

 
It was noted that the premises were situated on a terrace of shops with residential 
accommodation above and to the rear. It was explained that the premises were 
designed to be a restaurant on the ground floor and on a mezzanine floor; there would 
also be an external area. 
 
The Licensing Officer noted that part of the premises had previously operated as a 
business called ‘Rakkas’ which, following a review, had its premises licence revoked. 
It was commented that the premises licence holder at the time had been Mr Ali Ozbek 
and it was noted that he was still named as the rate payer at the premises. It was 
stated that the agent of the current applicant had submitted confirmation that Mr Ali 
Ozbek had no involvement in this application. 
 
It was noted that the applicant had offered to have no music played in the external 
area at the premises and had explained that alcohol sales would only be available 
through waiting service to the customers’ tables. 
 
The Licensing Officer reported that representations had been received from 
Environmental Health, the Licensing Authority, the Police, Planning, and three other 
persons, including Councillor Zena Brabazon, and these were set out in full in the 
report. It was explained that the representations from other persons related to 
concerns about links to the previous operation, a lack of clarity in relation to the 
external area, and the potential for noise. It was noted that, following the agreement of 
conditions with the applicant, the representation from the Police had been withdrawn. 
 
It was also noted that the relevant laws and guidance were listed in the report. It was 
explained that the Committee could grant the licence subject to mandatory and other 
conditions, exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to 
which the licence related, refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises 
supervisor, or reject the application. It was added that the licensing authority’s 
determination of the application was subject to a 21 day appeal period. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the following responses were provided: 

 It was confirmed that there were no photos of the garden area but that the 
applicant might wish to provide an explanation during their presentation. 

 It was noted that the previous premises licence holder, Mr Ali Ozbek, was named 
as the current rate payer at the premises and it was enquired whether he was 
involved in any aspect of the business. Duncan Craig, Solicitor for the applicant, 
noted that this would be explained in the applicant’s presentation. 

 It was confirmed that Mr Garip Toprak would be the Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS). 

 It was enquired whether any smoking in the external area would comply with 
smoking legislation which required any structure to be sufficiently open. The 
Licensing Officer noted that the applicant had been made aware of the relevant 

Page 170



 

 

legislation and the possible need for a further planning application if smoking 
would be undertaken; it was noted that the position could be clarified by the 
applicant. 

 
The Committee received representations from objectors: 

 Philip Cone, Licensing Authority, noted that he was grateful to the agent and 
applicant for agreeing several additional conditions. He explained that his main 
remaining concern was the external space and that the Licensing Authority had 
asked for the external space to be closed to customers from 2300 hours on Friday-
Saturday and from 2100 hours on Sunday-Thursday. The Licensing Authority had 
also requested a condition that the external area was fully enclosed and sound 
insulated. It was stated that, if the external area was not insulated, it was asked 
that it was closed from 2100 hours. It was noted that there was a history of noise 
complaints in the surrounding area and it was explained that the premises were 
now larger which could lead to a higher risk of noise. 

 It was noted that there were questions about whether the external area would be 
used for smoking and it was highlighted that this would come under different 
planning rules which would require an additional planning application. 

 

 Ian Sygrave, Ladder Community Safety Partnership, stated that these would be 
large premises where three units had been combined. It was explained that the 
premises were situated below two storeys of residential flats and adjacent to 20-30 
residences. It was noted that there would be a large number of customers in the 
premises and a number of local residents would be affected by noise. It was added 
that there were historic problems of noise nuisance at the premises, even when it 
had been a third of the size as there were no design structures to minimise noise 
escaping. 

 It was enquired how the back of the premises would be configured. It was noted 
that it was called the back garden on the plan but that the planning permissions 
suggested that it was entirely enclosed. It was stated that it would be useful to 
clarify the position so that appropriate conditions could be suggested. Ian Sygrave 
felt that, if the area would be open, reduced hours would be more appropriate. He 
stated that it would be good to establish whether the external area would be used 
for smoking shisha and whether there would be a smoking area. It would be 
important to clarify whether smoking would be taking place in close proximity to 
residential accommodation and whether there would be any controls. 

 

 Cllr Zena Brabazon noted that the area had a number of restaurants and a number 
of residential roads and that the tensions between these uses had to be 
considered. She stated that residents lived above the premises, often in small flats, 
and that it was difficult for them to deal with noise, smoke, and cooking smells. 

 It was noted that the external area at the premises backed onto residential 
properties and, therefore, the issue of noise would be important. Cllr Zena 
Brabazon stated that it would be useful to know whether the external area would 
be covered or would be used for smoking. 

 Cllr Zena Brabazon stated that there had been previous work with businesses in 
the area in relation to closing times to mitigate the tensions between the 
commercial and residential uses. She noted that she was curious how the 
proposed mezzanine level would operate within the premises and whether it would 

Page 171



 

 

be overlooking the external area, would have open windows, or would have 
appropriate ventilation. 

 It was noted that the hours requested in the application had been reduced which 
was welcomed as noise nuisance and public nuisance were great concerns for 
local residents. It was highlighted that residents had experienced previous issues 
with cooking smells and noise nuisance. 

 
In response to questions from the applicant, the following responses were provided: 

 Duncan Craig, Solicitor for the applicant, asked for clarity in relation to the 
conditions requested for the rear area. He enquired whether, if the external area 
was fully enclosed, the hours requested would be appropriate as long as noise and 
light did not cause an intrusion for residents. Philip Cone stated that the Licensing 
Authority was requesting that the external area was closed to customers from 2300 
hours on Friday-Saturday and on 2100 hours on all other days. 

 
The Committee heard from the representatives of the applicant, Duncan Craig 
(Solicitor), Garip Toprak (Applicant), and Kenan Kara (Agent for the Applicant). 
Duncan Craig confirmed that the original application had been amended substantially 
to reflect the concerns raised by residents and by Responsible Authorities. He noted 
that Mr Ali Ozbek had no involvement with the business and that a condition could be 
added to reflect this. It was explained that the rates were in his name because the 
applicant had only recently received correspondence about the rates and was waiting 
for certainty of the licensing position before signing the lease for the premises. 
Duncan Craig stated that the premises would not be a shisha lounge. He added that 
the premises would be made up of three previously separate units and would be 
larger but highlighted that there would be a number of conditions and no regulated 
entertainment. 
 
Duncan Craig noted that a number of conditions were offered and these were set out 
in the operating schedule which was included in the agenda pack. It was commented 
that the Police had agreed two conditions on CCTV and an incident report with the 
applicant and it was asked that these conditions were not duplicated in the licence. It 
was explained that the applicant had agreed most matters with the Licensing Authority 
and the only remaining issue related to a condition on amplified music; there were 
some technical details on the Live Music Act which brought into question how 
enforceable a condition on amplified music would be before 2300 hours. In relation to 
the external area at the rear of the premises, it was noted that there would be no 
regulated entertainment. Duncan Craig explained that there was a difference between 
regulated entertainment and music. It was noted that, subject to the grant of the 
licence, the applicant was requesting to have background music in the external area 
until 2300 hours. 
 
Duncan Craig acknowledged that there had been an element of confusion around the 
external area. It was noted that there were separate planning and licensing regimes. 
He explained that the external area would be enclosed but not fully enclosed and that, 
therefore, it would be compliant with the smoking regulations. It was stated that the 
premises would not be a shisha lounge but that there would be an option for people to 
smoke. Duncan Craig noted that the decision for the Licensing Sub-Committee would 
be about the conditions that were appropriate for the external area. It was commented 
that there would be no regulated entertainment and there would be a requirement to 

Page 172



 

 

vacate the area by 2300 hours. It was noted that a letter from the landlord had been 
submitted as evidence and this stated that there was noise separation between the 
ground floor and the flats above. It was added that there were only six flats above the 
premises and that the residential properties to the rear were a little distance away. 
 
It was commented that, once the works at the premises were completed, there might 
be a requirement to apply for a minor variation to the licence to make sure that the 
plans were accurate. It was noted that this would not involve a change to the 
licensable area or the nature of the operation of the premises. 
 
Duncan Craig noted that there was a condition to provide Security Industry Authority 
door staff at the premises from 8pm until closing every day. It was stated that this was 
unusual for a restaurant but it would ensure that the premises could be managed 
properly. In relation to any issues of odour, it was noted that the previous equipment 
used in the premises was slightly older and the applicant would have a state of the art 
charcoal filter extraction system in place. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the following responses were provided: 

 It was enquired how the mezzanine area was configured. Duncan Craig explained 
that the mezzanine was above the garden area and was enclosed. It was noted 
that it was not fully enclosed; there was a roof but it was stated that this was not 
included in the calculation for the smoking regulations. 

 It was clarified that, although the applicant had not signed the lease for the 
premises, his uncle was the landlord and they had an agreement. Duncan Craig 
stated that the applicant would be investing £1 million in the premises, including 
some structural works. 

 It was noted that the plans of the premises showed a number of seats in the 
external area but did not show an enclosure between the bar and the garden; it 
was enquired how the area was enclosed. Duncan Craig explained that there 
would be a wall between the bar and the back garden. He noted that this would not 
be in the licensing plan but that the wall was suspended above the bar and did not 
come down to ground level. Garip Toprak noted that the decoration of the 
premises had not been started yet but that there would be two doors for the garden 
and one door for entry. Kenan Kara, agent for the applicant, explained that the 
inside of the premises was fully enclosed and the garden was partly enclosed. He 
stated that there was a door marked on the plan of the premises, on page 30 of the 
agenda pack, between the bar and the garden. 

 Kenan Kara confirmed that the mezzanine would be partly enclosed and that it was 
located above part of the external area. It was explained that there would be a 
retractable roof which could be open or closed as required and that there would be 
an extraction system for the whole area. 

 It was confirmed that there would be disabled access on the ground floor but not to 
the mezzanine. It was enquired whether this was compliant with the Disability 
Discrimination Act. The Licensing Officer stated that this issue was noted but was 
not part of the licensing decision. 

 The Licensing Officer noted that the Responsible Authorities had considered the 
plans that were submitted as part of the application and that they might require 
further time to consider any amended plans. It was stated that retractable roofs 
were often used for shisha premises and that no plans had been submitted. It was 

Page 173



 

 

noted that Environmental Health had requested additional information and that a 
retractable roof did not ensure compliance with the smoking regulations. 

 It was noted that there would be approximately 88 seats in the mezzanine area. 
Concerns were expressed about noise escaping if this area was partly enclosed. 

 
The Chair expressed some concerns that the detail of the plans and the configuration 
of the premises was complicated and appeared to be changing throughout the 
hearing. Khumo Matthews, Legal Advisor, stated that the Committee may need to 
consider whether additional information was required in order to ensure a fair hearing. 
It was noted that, in the circumstances, it would be appropriate for the applicant to be 
able to clarify what their representations were. It was stated that this question could be 
put to the applicant’s representative but it was highlighted that the Committee would 
not be advised to continue if there was any confusion that was material to the 
application. 
 
Duncan Craig noted that minor alterations could be made after a licence was agreed 
as long as they did not alter the size of the space and he stated that the plan would be 
compliant. Duncan Craig had a brief discussion with the applicant. He confirmed that, 
given the comments made during the hearing, the applicant felt that it was sensible to 
adjourn the meeting to allow for additional detail to be provided. 
 
At 3.30pm, the members of the Licensing Sub-Committee agreed to adjourn the 
meeting. It was noted that the date of the reconvened meeting would be discussed 
with the parties and confirmed as soon as possible. 
 
 
At 7pm on Tuesday 27 July 2021, the meeting was reconvened with all parties from 
the initial hearing on 2 July 2021 present. Notice of the reconvened meeting was 
provided five clear working days in advance and additional plans submitted by the 
applicant were circulated on 19 July 2021 and 27 July 2021. 
 
 
The Chair re-convened the meeting and explained that the original meeting had been 
adjourned in order to clarify the detail of the plans and the external area in particular. It 
was noted that the applicant had provided some additional plans but no additional 
narrative. It was stated that, at the meeting on 2 July 2021, the Licensing Sub-
Committee had heard from all of the parties but that, as there were additional plans, it 
was suggested that the Licensing Sub-Committee would hear from the applicant first 
and then from the other parties. 
 
Duncan Craig explained that, following communications with the architect, it had been 
confirmed that any open apertures or retractable ceilings would require another 
planning application to be submitted and it was noted that this would be undertaken in 
due course. It was highlighted that the licensing and planning regimes were separate 
but that this was noted for information. 
 
It was noted that the proposed licensable area was shown on page 80 of the agenda 
pack. It was explained that the updated plans had a slightly different layout but that 
the licensable area was the same. Duncan Craig stated that there was a wall dividing 
the external area from the internal area; there was a recess in this wall which was a 

Page 174



 

 

servery to the external space. It was explained that there was a corridor which was the 
only way into and out of the rear area; this was demonstrated on the right hand side of 
the plan on page 80 of the agenda pack. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee and those who had submitted 
representations, the following responses were provided: 

 It was noted that 80 people could be seated in each of the internal ground floor 
area and the external area. 

 Duncan Craig stated that the key issue would be how the external area was 
conditioned; he noted that this would be easier to define as there was a more 
discrete area in the plan that had been submitted. 

 Ian Sygrave noted that there was a fire exit corridor area to the rear of the external 
area and enquired where this led. It was clarified that this was not a fire escape. 
Duncan Craig stated that, if the licence was granted, an amended plan would be 
submitted within 14 days. He highlighted that the licence would not be operational 
for a number of weeks as works were still ongoing at the premises and he 
undertook to ensure that the correct plan had been submitted before any 
licensable activities commenced. 

 Cllr Ross noted that, at the meeting on 2 July 2021, he had asked for confirmation 
of whether the spiral staircase was permitted under disability legislation. Duncan 
Craig noted that there was a requirement to make reasonable adjustments but that 
this was a planning matter and he understood that there was planning approval 
and that, if there was not, this would be enforced outside of the licensing regime. It 
was confirmed that there was no lift access to the mezzanine level. 

 It was also noted that seating for 40 people was shown in the plan for the 
mezzanine area but that this could change and that loose seating did not need to 
be shown on a licensing plan. Duncan Craig confirmed that the fire escape from 
the mezzanine level would be down the spiral staircase. Some concerns were 
expressed about the safety of this escape. Duncan Craig noted that this was not 
uncommon and that there had been no representations in relation to fire safety but 
that he would be happy to engage with the relevant Responsible Authority. 

 Duncan Craig noted that the Police representation had been withdrawn and that 
there were over 20 CCTV cameras in the premises. 

 Philip Cone stated that there were concerns relating to the retractable ceiling, the 
nature of the mezzanine floor, and whether there would be shisha smoking. 
Duncan Craig noted that there would be a retractable roof with five sections and he 
hoped that this was self explanatory. He commented that the premises would not 
be a shisha lounge and that the external area would be compliant with the smoking 
regulations. He added that this would be a restaurant and that people would be 
able to smoke cigarettes, cigars, and shisha but that this would not be a shisha 
lounge. It was stated that the roof would be open when there was any smoking. 

 Duncan Craig noted that the plan on page 84 of the agenda pack showed the high 
quality extraction system that would be installed; this was shown in blue and would 
involve air conditioning and air cleaning. He stated that some concerns had been 
expressed about smoke from the premises affecting residents but that this would 
be prevented by the extraction system. 

 The Licensing Officer did not believe that the licensing regime was engaged in the 
retractable roof as this was covered under the Health Act and would be subject to 
further planning arrangements. She added that this type of extraction system was 
normally only used for shisha lounges. 

Page 175



 

 

 Khumo Matthews, Legal Advisor, noted that planning and licensing were separate 
regimes but that the applicant should avoid being in a position where they were 
subject to enforcement. It was stated that any planning matters were separate from 
the licensing matters but were still relevant for the applicant. Duncan Craig stated 
that the Licensing Sub-Committee could impose licensing conditions as 
appropriate and that whether the shelter was compliant with the 2006 Regulations 
was a matter of law and would be subject to enforcement under that regime rather 
than a decision for the Licensing Sub-Committee. 

 Ian Sygrave noted that, in his representation, he had stated that the planning 
permission for the premises required the rooflights in the extension to be non-
opening to avoid noise nuisance and he felt that this issue also applied to the 
licensing application. He stated that, if the area was open for smoking, there would 
be noise from up to 120 people escaping from the premises. He expressed 
concerns about the hours of operation and how any hours would be policed. 

 Duncan Craig commented that any issues would be policed in accordance with the 
licence. He acknowledged that some conditions were harder to police but that the 
hours of operation were easier to enforce. He added that the external area would 
now be significantly less open than previously and that there would be greater 
protection. He stated that the decision on the licence and any relevant restrictions 
would be made by the Licensing Sub-Committee. 

 The Licensing Officer expressed concerns that the Licensing Sub-Committee was 
being asked to agree plans that had not been confirmed with planning and which 
would involve additional fixtures. It was also noted that the use of the external area 
involved the potential for noise and smoke intrusion for residents. 

 Cllr Zena Brabazon noted that she was not entirely certain of what was being 
proposed by the plans or proposals and questioned whether the Licensing Sub-
Committee could make a reasonable judgement. She expressed concerns that, 
based on the comments made by the landlord, the rear area would be a shisha 
garden and that, if the windows were open, this would have potentially significant 
implications for residents. 

 Duncan Craig noted that he disagreed with the Licensing Officer about the 
extraction system. He noted that fixed structures which obstructed any exit paths 
were on the plans and that electrical and other elements did not have to be 
included on the plan. He added that he was not aware that any licences had been 
refused based on any deficiencies in plans as these were often subject to change; 
it was noted that the licensable area was the key factor and that this was correct in 
the plans. He acknowledged the concerns about the history of the premises but 
noted that this would be a restaurant rather than a shisha lounge and that, even 
so, there was nothing in the Licensing Act which prevented shisha bars. 

 
The Chair invited the parties to make any final comments. 
 
Philip Cone, Licensing Authority, stated that his representation had not changed. He 
expressed concerns about smoking in the external area and about the retractable 
roof. He noted that, in winter, there would be no other smoking areas except in the 
external area under the retractable roof which would make the area very cold. Duncan 
Craig confirmed that there would be no other smoking areas, including to the front of 
the premises. He confirmed that, if the roof was closed, there would be no smoking at 
the premises. 
 

Page 176



 

 

Ian Sygrave, Ladder Community Safety Partnership, noted that there had been 
clarifications but that there was still a great deal of uncertainty. He expressed 
concerns that the Licensing Sub-Committee was required to make a decision when 
the retractable roof had been refused by planning. He stated that residents were 
concerned about noise and, despite reassurances, about the enforcement of the 
hours of operation. Ian Sygrave commented that he was not convinced that the 
smoking shelter would be compliant with the relevant Regulations which required 50% 
of the area to be open and non-fixed. He stated that the Licensing Sub-Committee 
was in a difficult position in terms of conditions and informatives as there was too 
much uncertainty. 
 
Cllr Zena Brabazon noted that she had submitted her representation on behalf of the 
ward and based on concerns for residents. She stated that this would be a very large 
premises where three shops had been combined, including a mezzanine level 
overlooking residential gardens and an external area where smoking would be 
permitted. It was noted that there were a number of residential properties above and 
adjoining the premises and that there were already a number of complaints about 
cooking smells which affected residents within the ward. Cllr Zena Brabazon stated 
that there were a number of issues with this application and she did not feel that it was 
ready to be granted a licence. She acknowledged that the applicant had amended the 
drawings but she felt that the issues had not been considered sufficiently. She 
expressed concerns about how noise in the external area would be contained if there 
were 80 people in the garden until 2am when the roof was open and given the 
proximity of the mezzanine and external area to residents. She asked the Licensing 
Sub-Committee to seriously consider this application and, if it was minded to approve 
the application, to consider the imposition of strict conditions. 
 
Duncan Craig noted that the scope of the application had been significantly restricted. 
The applicant was now requesting use of the external area until 11pm and 
Environmental Health had recommended this was restricted to 9pm. He stated that he 
disagreed that the application was not ready and commented that the plans reflected 
the layout of the premises, subject to one agreed amendment in relation to the fire 
exit. Duncan Craig noted that the application had been advertised through the 
statutory process. The questions about the premises and the external area were 
accepted but it was commented that this was a matter for the planning and 
environmental health regimes. It was stated that this was not a planning application by 
default and that the application had met all of the requirements to be determined by 
the Licensing Sub-Committee. It was noted that the applicant had listened to the 
representations, was making a significant investment in the local area, and did not 
want to upset the neighbours. It was highlighted that the applicant had amended the 
application in order to balance the operation of the business and its co-existence with 
the neighbours. 
 
It was clarified that late night refreshment was requested until 11.30pm, the sale of 
alcohol was requested until 11.30pm, and the hours of operation of the premises were 
requested until 12am (midnight) every day of the week. It was noted that the hours for 
late night refreshment related to when food was served and this would involve last 
food orders being taken at approximately 11.15pm. It was also included in the 
proposed conditions that there would be a minimum of two Security Industry Authority 
door staff at the premises; it was noted that this was unusual for this type of premises 

Page 177



 

 

but this was considered to be a positive measure for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 
 
At 8pm, the Committee adjourned to consider the application. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee carefully considered the application for a new premises 
licence for 365-369 Green Lanes, London, N4. In considering the application, the 
Committee took account of the London Borough of Haringey’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy, the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Act 2003 section 182 Guidance, the 
report pack, the Licensing Authority representation, the applicant’s written and oral 
representations and the objectors’ written and oral representations. 
 
Having considered the application and heard from all the parties, the Committee 
decided to grant the application for a new premises licence with the following 
operating hours and additional conditions: 
 

Supply of Alcohol 
 
Sunday to Thursday  1100 to 2230 hours 
Friday to Saturday   1100 to 2330 hours 

 
Supply of alcohol ON the premises only. 
 
Hours open to Public 
 
Sunday to Thursday 0600 to 2300 hours 
Friday and Saturday 0800 to 0000 hours 
 
Late Night Refreshment  
 
Friday and Saturday 2300 to 2330 hours 

 
The Committee imposed the following conditions: 
 
1. All outside areas must be closed and cleared of customers by 2100 hours. 

Adequate notices shall be displayed to inform patrons of this requirement. The 
premises licence holder shall take appropriate measures to ensure that patrons 
using any outside areas do so in a quiet and orderly fashion. 

 
2. Smoking Area: If patrons are to be allowed to use an outside area for smoking 

then: 
 

(i) The area must be adequately monitored to ensure that the risk of crime and 
disorder in this area is adequately controlled. 

 
(ii) Patrons must not be allowed to take drinks outside when they go to smoke. 

 
(iii) The area must be provided with suitable ashtrays/bins. 

Page 178



 

 

 
(iv) The area must be regularly swept to remove cigarette ends 

 
(v) Adequate arrangements must be made to prevent overcrowding or disorder in 

the area. 
 

3. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the 
following criteria: 
 
(a) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance doors from both inside and 

outside. 
 
(b) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and 

shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification. 
 

(c) Cameras must be sited to cover all areas to which the public have access 
including any outside smoking areas. 

 
(d) Provide a linked record of the date, time of any image. 

 
(e) Provide good quality images - colour during opening times. 

 
(f) Have a monitor to review images and recorded quality. 

 
(g) Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and 

retention. 
 

(h) Member of staff trained in operating CCTV at venue during times open to the 
public. 

 
(i) Digital images must be kept for 31 days. The equipment must have a suitable 

export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that Police can make an evidential 
copy of the data they require. Copies must be available within a reasonable 
time to Police on request. 

 
4. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, it will be in a hardback durable format 

handwritten at the time of the incident or as near to as is reasonable and made 
available on request to the Police, which will record the following: 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue; 
(b) all ejections of patrons; 
(c) any complaints received; 
(d) any incidents of disorder; 
(e) seizures of drugs or offensive weapons; 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment; 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol; 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
5.  

Page 179



 

 

(a) A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly 
available at all times the premises are open. This telephone number shall be 
made available to residents and businesses in the vicinity.   

 
(b) The premises licence holder shall ensure that all sales staff receive appropriate 

training in relation to managing conflict and health and safety of the public 
and staff. Training documents shall be signed and dated and will be held in a 
suitable hard-copy log, to be made available to a Police Officer or Council 
Officer upon request. Said records shall be retained for at least 12 months. 

 
6. Prevention of Public nuisance: 

(a) No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, 
shall emanate from the premises, nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise to nuisance. 

 
(b) All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 23:00 hours except 

for the immediate access and egress of persons. 
 

(c) Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 
the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 

 
(d) No fumes, steam or odours shall be emitted from the licensed premises so as 

to cause a nuisance to any persons living or carrying on business in the area 
where the premises are situated. 

 
(e) The direction of lighting in the rear area must be directed away from any 

domestic premises so as not cause any light intrusion. 
 

(f) Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells 
serving the building shall not cause a nuisance to the occupants of any 
properties in the vicinity. Any filters, ducting and extract fan shall be cleaned 
and serviced regularly. 

 
(g) In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised 

officer, the licensee shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any 
recurrence. 

 
(h) Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits (including the 

rear seating area) requesting the public to respect the needs of local 
residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 

 
7. Public safety 

(a) The licence holder will ensure that all staff receive appropriate training about 
emergency and general safety precautions and procedures. 

 
(b) Two SIA registered door staff shall be employed daily between 8pm and 

closing time. 
 

8. Protection of children from harm: 
 

Page 180



 

 

The premises will operate the ‘Challenge 25’ proof of age scheme where: 
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation; 
(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK 

driving licence, or holograph equipped ‘PASS’ scheme cards, will be 
accepted; and 

(c) No one under the age of 18 years will be admitted into the external area of the 
premises. 

 
Reasons 
 
The Committee considered that the concerns raised by the objectors in their written 
and oral representations were reasonable concerns. The Committee was satisfied that 
a premises of this size would attract a lot of patrons and would need a comprehensive 
set of conditions to manage the likely impact of noise and other nuisance on local 
residents. The Committee accepted that the licence holder was offering a different 
business to the previous owner but retained some concerns about the manner in 
which it was proposed that the premises would operate. 
 
The Committee felt that the applicants proposed layout plan needed additional 
clarification, in particular aspects of the plan dealing with the means of escape, which 
may need to be corrected by means of an application for a variation once the 
applicant has clarified his intentions as regards the layout. 
 
In addition, although the Committee was not responsible for planning matters, it noted 
that there were some planning issues relating to the retractable roofing proposed and 
extraction system that required attention and wished as an informative matter only, to 
gently encourage the applicant to get planning matters resolved to the satisfaction of 
the planning authority without delay.  
 
As regards the outside area, the Committee considered that the outside space needed 
to be managed in a way that would promote the licensing objectives with respect to 
nuisance, which had been a concern of the residents and decided that closing the 
outside area by 9pm would reduce the risk of the premises undermining the licensing 
objective with respect to public nuisance. 
 
Appeal Rights 
 
This decision is open to appeal to the Magistrates Court within the period of 21 days 
beginning on the day upon which the appellant is notified of the decision. This 
decision does not take effect until the end of the appeal period or, in the event that an 
appeal has been lodged, until the appeal is dispensed with. 
 
 
CHAIR: Councillor Sheila Peacock (Vice-Chair, in the Chair)  

 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 

 
Date ………………………………… 
 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 6 

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

P
age 185



 

 

 

 

P
age 186



 

 

Appendix 7 

Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank



            

 

 

 
Licensing Team Leader  Daliah Barrett -Williams   
 
 

 

  

Page 189



            

 

Page 190



            

 

Licensing Team   
                                                                                                         Level 4, Alexandra House 
                                                                                                         10 Station Road 
                                                                                                         London, N22 8HQ 

 
T 020 8489 8232 
E licensing@haringey.gov.uk 
         www.haringey.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE AT RAKKAS 365-369 GREEN LANES, LONDON N8 (HARRINGAY)
	Appendix1
	Review Application AMENDED
	Warning letters Rakkas
	Witness statement - Rakkas
	Rakkas Statment Sarah Greer (003)
	Email 1 with atttachement
	Email 3
	email 3 attachment
	Premises list
	Appendix2
	Redacted Premises Licence
	appendix b supporting documents
	List of pics
	Appendix3
	Objectors - REDACTED
	Rakkas - Review of License  Jan 2023
	Appendix4
	In Support - REDACTED
	RAKKAS SURVEY FORMS
	Appendix5
	Printed minutes 02072021 1400 Special Licensing Sub Committee
	Appendix6
	Appendix 6
	Appendix7
	APPLICANTS FOR RAKKAS VARIATION RES




